LIBERTY BANCORP, INC.

16 West Frankli  Liberty, Missouri 64068  816.781.4822

Dear Fellow Shareholder,
I am pleased to report the Company was again profitable in 2012 producing net earnings of $3.7 million.
We accomplished this by continuing to execute the fundamentals of community banking. Profits were
primarily the result of core banking operations, not one-time or extraordinary gains.
We accomplished much in 2012. Our customers responded positively to the introduction of mobile
banking and eStatements. Asset quality improved and core deposits grew. The bank’s net earnings and
capital remained strong.
In 2013, we will continue to focus on building on the foundation we are developing to produce
consistent, solid returns and deliver long-term shareholder value. The management team is cohesive
and our staff is empowered to make decisions. Our ability to respond quickly and effectively to our
customers’ needs has been instrumental to our recent success. We will also continue to focus on
building on last year’s success in improving asset quality and reducing non-performing assets.
The community banking industry’s challenges have not dissipated. The expanding regulatory climate
continues to divert resources. Economic growth is weak and our country’s fiscal outlook is very
concerning. Loan demand remains tepid and revenue opportunities are diminished by intensifying
competition and regulatory pressures. Margins continue to be pressured while costs continue to
increase.
Despite these challenges, I remain optimistic about our future. I am confident we are well-positioned to
meet these challenges and continue to thrive as a community bank that blends sensible balance sheet
management with tremendous personal service to meet the evolving preferences and demands of our
customers.
Sincerely,

Brent M. Giles
President & Chief Executive Officer

Selected Consolidated Financial Data
Selected Financial Data:
At the Years Ended
Dec. 31, 2012

Sept. 30, 2011

Sept. 30, 2010

Sept. 30, 2009

Sept. 30, 2008

(dollars in thousands)

Total assets
Securities and mortgage-backed securities
Loans receivable, net
Deposits
Total borrowings
Stockholders' equity (1)

$
$
$
$
$
$

413,766
11,489
309,075
302,671
43,862
64,112

$
$
$
$
$
$

462,354
13,793
302,862
325,569
67,304
65,175

$
$
$
$
$
$

457,996
12,655
339,797
338,170
69,123
47,413

$
$
$
$
$
$

392,398
29,721
302,246
276,203
69,688
43,785

$
$
$
$
$
$

336,185
40,043
256,713
219,764
70,053
44,009

Operating Results
For the Years Ended
Dec. 31, 2012

Sept. 30, 2011

Sept. 30, 2010

Sept. 30, 2009

Sept. 30, 2008

(dollars in thousands)

Total interest income
Total interest expense
Net interest income
Provision for loan losses
Net interest income after provision for loan losses
Total noninterest income
Total noninterest expense
Earnings before income taxes
Income taxes
Net earnings

$

$

26,331
4,279
22,052
4,522
17,530
5,162
18,170
4,522
854
3,668

$

$

23,721
4,660
19,061
2,033
17,028
2,966
14,505
5,489
1,781
3,708

$

$

21,711
5,412
16,299
2,642
13,657
6,712
13,256
7,113
2,367
4,746

$

19,959
6,619
13,340
1,569
11,771
2,251
11,575
2,447
671
1,776

$

$

$

20,156
9,384
10,772
1,881
8,891
2,124
8,387
2,628
706
1,922

At or For the Years Ended
Other Financial Data
Dec. 31, 2012

Sept. 30, 2011

Sept. 30, 2010

Sept. 30, 2009

Sept. 30, 2008

(dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

Return on assets (2)
Return on stockholders' equity (3)
Stockholders' equity to total assets ratio (4)
Non-performing non-covered assets as a % of total assets
Allowance for loan losses as a % of non-covered loans
Efficiency ratio
Dividend payout ratio (5)
Cash dividends on common stock (actual dollar amount)
Cash dividends on preferred stock (actual dollar amount)
Common shares outstanding - end of year

$
$

0.85
5.71
14.95
6.01
2.15
66.77
20.00
733,661
699,221
3,040,269

%
%
%
%
%
%
%
$

0.84
7.21
11.60
3.47
1.58
65.85
9.16
339,599
3,326,514

%
%
%
%
%
%
%
$

1.12
10.44
10.69
4.43
1.44
57.61
7.48
355,069
3,564,769

%
%
%
%
%
%
%
$

0.47
4.07
11.65
1.41
1.16
74.24
20.62
366,120
3,621,875

%
%
%
%
%
%
%
$

0.57
4.18
13.61
3.91
1.02
65.04
20.97
402,956
3,936,710

Per Share Data
Basic earnings per common share
Diluted earnings per common share
Tangible common equity per share (6)
Cash dividends per share (paid to common shareholders)

$
$
$
$

(1) Includes the issuance of $16.2 million in preferred stock pursuant
to the Treasury's Small Business Lending Fund program.
(2) Net earnings divided by average assets.
(3) Net earnings divided by average stockholders' equity.
(4) Average stockholders' equity divided by average total assets.
(5) Represents dividends paid to holders of common stock as a percentage of net earnings.
(6) Represents consolidated tangible common equity per outstanding
common share at end of year.

0.92
0.91
15.35
0.225

$
$
$
$

1.07
1.07
14.10
0.10

$
$
$
$

1.33
1.32
12.71
0.10

$
$
$
$

0.50
0.49
11.30
0.10

$
$
$
$

0.48
0.47
11.04
0.10

%
%
%
%
%
%
%
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Audit Committee, Board of Directors
and Stockholders
Liberty Bancorp, Inc.
Liberty, Missouri
We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Liberty Bancorp, Inc., which comprise
the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2012 and September 30, 2011, and the related consolidated
statements of earnings, comprehensive earnings, stockholders’ equity and cash flows for the 15 months ended
December 31, 2012 and year ended September 30, 2011, and the related notes to the financial statements.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.
Opinion
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Liberty Bancorp, Inc. as of December 31, 2012 and September 30, 2011, and the results of
its operations and its cash flows for the 15 months ended December 31, 2012 and year ended September 30,
2011, in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

St. Louis, Missouri
April 9, 2013
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LIBERTY BANCORP, INC.
Consolidated Balance Sheets
December 31, 2012 and September 30, 2011
Assets
Cash and due from banks
Federal funds sold
Total cash and cash equivalents
Interest-bearing time deposits due from depository institutions
Securities available for sale, at market value (amortized cost
of $5,537,807 and $6,791,658, at 2012 and 2011, respectively)
Mortgage-backed securities ("MBS") - available for sale, at market value
(amortized cost of $6,570,688 and $6,921,945, at 2012 and 2011, respectively)
Stock in Federal Home Loan Bank of Des Moines ("FHLB")
Loans receivable, excluding covered loans, net of allowance for loan losses
of $6,185,686 and $4,241,556, at 2012 and 2011, respectively
Covered loans receivable, net of discounts
Total loans receivable, net
Loans held for sale
Premises and equipment, net
Bank-owned life insurance ("BOLI")
Non-covered foreclosed assets, net
Covered foreclosed assets, net
Total foreclosed assets, net
Interest receivable
Goodwill
Core deposit intangibles, net
Deferred tax asset
FDIC indemnification asset
Other assets
Total assets
Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity
Deposits
Interest payable
Advances from FHLB
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase
Advances from borrowers for taxes and insurance
Other liabilities
Total liabilities
Stockholders' equity:
Preferred stock, $0.01 par value; 1,000,000 shares
authorized; shares issued and outstanding - none
Preferred stock, Series A, par value $0.01, 16,169 shares authorized, issued and
outstanding at December 31, 2012 and September 30, 2011
Common stock, $0.01 par value; 20,000,000 shares authorized;
4,799,716 and 4,765,212 shares issued at December 31, 2012 and
September 30, 2011, respectively
Treasury stock at cost, 1,759,447 and 1,438,698 shares at December 31,
2012 and September 30, 2011, respectively
Additional paid-in capital
Accumulated other comprehensive earnings (loss), net
Retained earnings - substantially restricted
Total stockholders' equity
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity
See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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$

$

$

$

2012
6,129,318
29,333,000
35,462,318
992,000

$

2011
6,174,655
75,947,252
82,121,907
992,000

4,973,636

6,715,060

6,515,612
2,320,100

7,078,098
3,516,100

281,717,212
27,357,769
309,074,981
1,613,587
10,913,188
13,524,998
9,787,192
2,892,990
12,680,182
1,365,083
1,191,603
424,500
3,004,553
7,699,365
2,010,634
413,766,340

263,997,172
38,865,114
302,862,286
2,793,780
12,242,851
12,849,232
10,855,215
5,963,034
16,818,249
1,453,266
1,191,603
695,847
632,829
9,111,646
1,278,961
462,353,715

302,670,586
72,447
40,744,472
3,117,385
69,738
2,979,644
349,654,272

$

$

325,568,913
151,902
66,406,753
896,750
1,362,638
2,791,780
397,178,736

-

-

161

161

47,997

47,652

(17,326,742)
49,920,222
(390,087)
31,860,517
64,112,068
413,766,340

$

(13,993,828)
49,406,726
88,574
29,625,694
65,174,979
462,353,715

LIBERTY BANCORP, INC.
Consolidated Statements of Earnings
Fifteen Months Ended December 31, 2012 and Year Ended September 30, 2011
2012
Interest income:
Loans receivable
Mortgage-backed securities
Securities - taxable
Securities - non-taxable
Other interest-earning assets
Total interest income
Interest expense:
Deposits
Securities sold under agreement to repurchase
Advances from FHLB
Total interest expense
Net interest income
Provision for loan losses
Net interest income after provision for loan losses
Noninterest income:
Loan service charges
Gains on sales of loans, net of costs
Gains on sales of securities and MBS available for sale
Gains on sales of premises and equipment
Change in cash surrender value of BOLI
Deposit account service charges
Gain on extinguishment of debt
Increase in indemnification asset
Total noninterest income
Noninterest expense:
Compensation and benefits
Occupancy
Equipment and data processing
Foreclosed assets, net
FDIC premiums
Professional and regulatory services
Advertising
Correspondent banking charges
Supplies
Amortization of core deposit intangibles
Other
Total noninterest expense
Earnings before income taxes
Income taxes:
Current
Deferred
Total income taxes
Net earnings

$

Basic earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share

$
$

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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$

25,521,282
200,252
126,988
354,230
128,271
26,331,023

2011
$

22,933,455
171,476
162,458
351,633
102,007
23,721,029

2,901,505
22,509
1,355,105
4,279,119
22,051,904
4,522,303
17,529,601

3,130,603
18,800
1,510,668
4,660,071
19,060,958
2,032,904
17,028,054

104,042
559,949
157,778
1,135,673
675,766
2,017,556
511,098
5,161,862

97,945
646,320
159,638
442,013
1,377,901
146,102
96,286
2,966,205

7,489,953
1,053,563
1,478,304
4,017,428
433,159
883,124
196,898
145,019
209,163
271,347
1,991,800
18,169,758
4,521,705

6,200,550
1,209,887
1,355,034
2,629,795
449,117
821,870
129,690
113,059
152,844
199,070
1,244,127
14,505,043
5,489,216

3,028,000
(2,174,000)
854,000
3,667,705

0.92
0.91

$

$
$

2,119,000
(338,000)
1,781,000
3,708,216

1.07
1.07

LIBERTY BANCORP, INC.
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Earnings
Fifteen Months Ended December 31, 2012 and Year Ended September 30, 2011
2012
Net earnings

$

3,667,705

2011
$

3,708,216

Other comprehensive earnings (loss):
Unrealized gains (losses) on securities and MBSs
available for sale, net:
Reclassification adjustment for gains included in earnings, net of
tax of $(54,179) and $(56,344), respectively
Unrealized gains (losses) arising during the year, net of tax of
$(172,872) and $203,644, respectively
Decrease in unrealized gain on benefit plans, net of tax of $(8,064)
and $(7,030), respectively
Other comprehensive earnings (loss)
Comprehensive earnings

$
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(103,599)

(103,294)

(360,088)

363,846

(14,974)

(13,056)

(478,661)

247,496

3,189,044

$

3,955,712
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Balance at September 30, 2010

161

Balance at December 31, 2012

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

-

Cash dividends on preferred stock ($43.24 per share)

Net earnings

-

-

Other comprehensive loss

Cash dividends on common stock ($.225 per share)

47,997

-

-

-

-

-

Amortization of stock option grants

Amortization of stock awards

-

345

-

incentive plan, 34,504 shares

47,652

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

35

47,617

Common
Stock

Treasury stock

$

161

Balance at September 30, 2011
-

-

Net earnings

Shares issued under stock-based

161

-

Other comprehensive income

Cash dividends ($.10 per share)

-

Amortization of stock option grants

Issuance of preferred stock

-

Amortization of stock awards

-

-

-

$

$

Treasury stock

incentive plan, 3,500 shares

Shares issued under stock-based

Preferred
Stock

(17,326,742)

-

-

-

-

-

-

(3,332,914)

-

(13,993,828)

-

-

-

-

-

-

(2,341,894)

-

(11,651,934)

Tresury Stock

49,920,222

-

-

-

-

223,142

54,345

-

236,009

49,406,726

-

16,168,839

-

-

41,858

253,368

-

23,940

32,918,721

Additional
Paid-In
Capital

31,860,517

3,667,705

(699,221)

(733,661)

-

-

-

-

-

29,625,694

3,708,216

-

(339,599)

-

-

-

-

-

26,257,077

Retained
Earnings

(390,087)

-

-

-

(478,661)

-

-

-

-

88,574

-

-

-

247,496

-

-

-

-

(158,922)

Accumulated
Other
Comprehensive
Earnings (Loss)

Fifteen Months Ended December 31, 2012 and Year Ended September 30, 2011
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LIBERTY BANCORP, INC.

64,112,068

3,667,705

(699,221)

(733,661)

(478,661)

223,142

54,345

(3,332,914)

236,354

65,174,979

3,708,216

16,169,000

(339,599)

247,496

41,858

253,368

(2,341,894)

23,975

47,412,559

Total
Stockholders'
Equity

LIBERTY BANCORP, INC.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Fifteen Months Ended December 31, 2012 and Year Ended September 30, 2011
2012

2011

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net earnings

$

3,667,705

$

3,708,216

Adjustments to reconcile net earnings to net
cash provided by (used in) operating activities:
Depreciation expense

803,921

696,709

Amortization of core deposit intangibles

271,347

199,070

Accretion of discount on loans acquired

(133,428)

(5,000)

Accretion of discount on FDIC indemnification asset

(417,000)

(640,000)

Accretion of discount on FDIC true-up liability

-

Amortization of premium on FHLB advances assumed

(87,435)

Incentive Plan expense

277,487

Amortization of premiums on investments, net

108,348

Accretion of discounts on noncovered loans

20,467
(1,221,408)
295,226
14,826

(5,000)

Amortization of deferred loan fees, net

(15,333)

(58,535)

Provision for loan losses
Loans held for sale - originated
Loans held for sale - proceeds from sale
Loss on foreclosed assets, net
Gain on sale of premises and equipment

(78,573)

4,522,303

2,032,904

(32,663,357)

(34,825,090)

34,403,499

38,342,536

1,704,625

2,030,727

(1,135,673)

(24,131)

Gain on sale of securities and MBSs available for sale

(157,778)

(159,638)

Gains on sales of loans, net

(559,949)

(646,320)

Change in cash surrender value of BOLI

(675,766)

(442,013)

Other assets

(731,673)

717,714

Decrease (increase) in:
Interest receivable

88,183

Deferred tax assets

(53,519)

(2,136,610)

(338,000)

(1,298,462)

806,102

Increase (decrease) in:
Interest payable and other liabilities
Net cash provided by operating activities

$
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5,786,752

$

10,415,472

LIBERTY BANCORP, INC.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Fifteen Months Ended December 31, 2012 and Year Ended September 30, 2011
2012

2011

(Continued)
Cash flows from investing activities:
Net change in loans receivable

$

Increase in interest-bearing deposits

(16,595,507)

$

-

20,204,553
(992,000)

MBSs available for sale:
Purchased
Proceeds from sales, maturities and collections

(14,751,989)

(7,153,488)

15,160,283

4,921,386

(25,499,930)

(35,810,895)

26,746,175

37,450,614

Securities available for sale:
Purchased
Proceeds from sales, maturities, calls and collections
Purchases of stock in FHLB

(1,091,300)

(882,200)

Redemptions of stock in FHLB

2,287,300

866,200

Proceeds from the sales of foreclosed assets, net

7,585,572

8,498,221

Purchases of premises and equipment

(393,993)

(111,287)

Proceeds from sales of premises and equipment

2,055,408

338,161

Payments received from FDIC under Loss Share Agreement

2,734,623

13,281,924

Purchase of BOLI

-

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities

(3,000,000)

(1,763,358)

37,611,189

(22,898,327)

(12,600,751)

Cash flows from financing activities:
Net decrease in deposits
Increase (decrease) in advances from borrowers for
taxes and insurance

(1,292,900)

175,894

Proceeds from advances from FHLB

40,000,000

20,000,000

Repayments of advances from FHLB

(65,574,846)

(20,600,008)

31,947,244

16,712,127

(29,726,609)

(16,710,478)

(3,332,914)

(2,341,894)

Securities sold under agreement to repurchase:
Proceeds
Repayments
Repurchases of common stock
Proceeds from exercise of stock options
Issuance of preferred stock

236,354

23,975

-

16,169,000

Dividends on common stock

(733,661)

Dividends on preferred stock

(699,221)

(339,599)
-

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities

(52,074,880)

488,266

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

(46,659,589)

48,514,927

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

$
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82,121,907
35,462,318

$

33,606,980
82,121,907

LIBERTY BANCORP, INC.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Fifteen Months Ended December 31, 2012 and Year Ended September 30, 2011
2012

2011

(Continued)
Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:
Cash paid during the year for:
Interest on deposits

$

Interest on advances from FHLB
Interest on securities sold under agreement to repurchase
Income taxes

2,980,960

$

3,196,351

1,355,105

1,510,668

22,509

18,819

2,442,854

1,205,000

Real estate acquired in settlement of loans

9,180,296

15,058,081

Loans originated to finance the sale of foreclosed real estate

4,028,166

93,500

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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LIBERTY BANCORP, INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(1)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Liberty Bancorp, Inc. (the “Company”) is a Missouri corporation and holding company
for BankLiberty (the “Bank”).
The Company and the Bank changed their fiscal year ends to December 31. The year
ended September 30, 2011 covers the period October 1, 2010 through September 30, 2011.
The fifteen months ended December 31, 2012 covers the period October 1, 2011 through
December 31, 2012. The board of directors believes this change is in the best interests of
stockholders as it will make certain financial and regulatory reporting more efficient and
consistent with industry standards.
The following comprise the significant accounting policies, which the Company and Bank
follow in preparing and presenting their consolidated financial statements:
a.

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its
wholly owned subsidiary, BankLiberty. The Company·s principal business is the business
of the Bank. All significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been
eliminated in consolidation.

b.

For purposes of reporting cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash and due
from banks and interest-bearing funds in other banks with original maturities of three
months or less. Pursuant to legislation enacted in 2010, the FDIC fully insured all
noninterest-bearing transaction accounts beginning December 31, 2010, through
December 31, 2012. Beginning January 1, 2013, noninterest-bearing transaction
accounts are subject to the $250,000 limit on FDIC insurance per covered institution. The
Company has approximately $1,946,000 in cash in bank accounts that exceed federally
insured limits. The Company does not believe it is exposed to any significant credit risk.

c.

Securities are classified as available for sale and are reported at fair value, with
unrealized gains and losses excluded from earnings and reported in other
comprehensive earnings. Net unrealized losses on securities, net of tax of $212,957,
amounted to $406,290 at December 31, 2012. Net unrealized gains on securities, net of
tax of $22,157, amounted to $57,398 at September 30, 2011.
The cost of securities sold is determined by specific identification. Declines in fair values
of securities available for sale deemed to be other-than-temporary are charged to earnings
as realized losses. In estimating other-than-temporary impairment, management of the
Company considers the length of time and the extent to which the fair value has been less
than cost, the financial condition and near-term prospects of the issuer, and the
Company·s intent to sell the security or whether it is more likely than not it will be required
to sell the security before the anticipated recovery of its remaining amortized cost basis
and adverse changes to expected cash flows.
Stock in the FHLB is recorded at cost, which represents redemption value. Dividends
received on such stock are reported as income. The Bank is a member of the Federal
Home Loan Bank system. BankLiberty is required by Federal law to own FHLB common
stock based on a certain percentage of the Bank·s assets and FHLB advances.

F-9

LIBERTY BANCORP, INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
FHLB stock is evaluated for impairment in accordance with Financial Accounting
Standards Board (“FASB”) Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) 942-325-35,
“Financial Services - Depository and Lending – Investments - Other.” Determination of
whether the FHLB stock is impaired is based on the assessment of the ultimate
recoverability of cost rather than by recognizing declines in value. The determination of
whether a decline affects the ultimate recoverability of costs is influenced by the
significance of the decline in net assets compared to the capital of the FHLB and the
length of time this situation has persisted, the ability of the FHLB to make payments
required by law or regulation and operating performance, the impact of legislative and
regulatory changes on member institutions and customer base and the liquidity position
of the FHLB.
Management believes no impairment charge on FHLB stock is necessary at December
31, 2012.
Collateralized mortgage obligations (“CMOs”) included in mortgage-backed securities are
mortgage derivatives and the type owned by the Bank is classified as “low risk” under
regulatory guidelines. CMOs are subject to the effects of interest rate risk. The Bank has
not purchased CMOs at any significant premium over par value to limit certain
prepayment risks.
d.

Loans receivable, net are carried at unpaid principal balances, less loans in process, net
deferred loan fees, unearned discounts and allowance for losses.
Loans acquired in the FDIC assisted acquisition of Champion Bank are included in the
Loss Share Agreement and are reported exclusive of the cash flow reimbursements
expected from the FDIC.
Loans originated and held for sale in the secondary market are carried at the lower of cost
or estimated market value in the aggregate. Net unrealized losses are recognized through
a valuation allowance by charges to income. Gains on sales of loans are recognized once
title has passed to the purchaser, substantially all risks and rewards of ownership have
irrevocably passed to the purchaser and recourse obligations, if any, are minor and can be
reasonably estimated.
Loan origination and commitment fees and certain direct loan origination costs are
deferred and amortized to interest income over the contractual lives of the loans using the
interest method.

e.

Valuation allowances are established for impaired loans for the differences between the
loan amounts and the fair values of collateral less estimated selling costs. The Bank
considers a loan to be impaired when, based on current information and events, it is
probable the Bank will be unable to collect all amounts due according to the contractual
terms of the loan agreement on a timely basis. The types of loans for which impairment is
measured include nonaccrual income property loans (excluding those loans included in
the homogenous portfolio which are collectively reviewed for impairment), large,
nonaccrual single-family loans and troubled debt restructurings. Such loans are placed on
nonaccrual status at the point deemed uncollectible. Impairment losses are recognized
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through an increase in the allowance for loan losses. A loan is considered delinquent
when a payment has not been made by the contractual due date.
f.

Allowances for losses are available to absorb losses incurred on loans receivable and
foreclosed real estate and represent additions charged to expense, less net charge-offs.
Loans are charged-off in the period deemed uncollectible. Recoveries of loans
previously charged-off are credited to the allowance when received. The allowance
consists of specific and general components. The specific component relates to loans
individually classified as impaired, for which the carrying value of the loan exceeds the
fair value of the collateral or the present value of expected future cash flows, or loans
otherwise adversely classified. The general component covers non-impaired loans and
is based on the historical loan loss experience, including adjustments to cover
uncertainties that affect the Bank·VHVWLPDWHRISUREDEOHORVVHVIRUHDFKORDQW\SH7KH
adjustments to historical loss experience are based on evaluations of several factors,
including primarily changes in lending policies and procedures; changes in collection,
charge-off and recovery practices; changes in the nature and volume of the loan
portfolio; changes in the volume and severity of nonperforming loans; the existence and
effect of any concentrations of credit and changes in the level of such concentrations;
and changes in current, national and local economic and business conditions.
Management believes that all known losses in the loan portfolio that are probable and
reasonable to estimate have been recorded as of each balance sheet date.

g.

The Bank follows FASB ASC 310-30, “Receivables-Loans and Debt Securities Acquired
with Deteriorated Credit Quality,” and reviews each loan acquired in a business
combination to determine whether there is evidence of deterioration of credit quality
since origination and it is probable the Bank will be unable to collect all amounts due
DFFRUGLQJ WR WKH ORDQ·V FRQWUDFWXDO WHUPV  ,I ERWK FRQGLWLRQV H[LVW VXFK ORDQV DUH
accounted for individually or pooled based upon common characteristics, including loan
type. The excess of the scheduled contractual payments over all cash flows expected at
acquisition of the individual loans or pools is a nonaccretable difference. The amount
UHSUHVHQWLQJ WKH H[FHVV RI WKH ORDQ·V FDVK IORZV H[SHFWHG WR EH FROOHFWHG RYHU WKH
amount paid for the loans is accreted into interest income over the remaining life of the
loan or pool as an accretable yield with consideration of actual prepayments. Over the
remaining life or pool, the Bank continues to estimate cash flows expected to be
collected. For loans with decreases in cash flows expected to be collected, a loss is
recognized. For loans with increases in cash flows expected to be collected, the
accretable yield is increased and recognized on a prospective basis over the remaining
life of the loan or pool. Allowance for losses on acquired loans reflects only losses
incurred after acquisition.

h.

Premises and equipment are carried at cost, less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation
of premises and equipment is computed using the straight-line method based on the
estimated useful lives of the related assets. Estimated lives are five to 40 years for
buildings and improvements, and three to 10 years for furniture and equipment.

i.

Foreclosed assets are carried at the lower of cost or fair value less estimated selling costs
based upon an appraisal or internal valuation of the property. Costs related to
improvements of foreclosed assets are capitalized. Foreclosed assets may also include
properties for which the Bank has taken physical possession, even though formal
foreclosure proceedings have not taken place.
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Covered foreclosed assets represent real estate acquired in the FDIC assisted acquisition
of Champion Bank. Such real estate is recorded at fair value at the date of acquisition and
subject to the terms of the Loss Share Agreement.
j.

Interest on securities and loans receivable is accrued as earned. Interest on loans
receivable contractually delinquent is excluded from income when deemed uncollectible.
When a loan is classified as nonaccrual, accrued interest is reversed against current
income. Subsequent collection of interest on nonaccrual loans is recorded as income
when received or applied to reduce the loan balance. Accrual of interest is resumed on
previously classified nonaccrual loans, when there is no longer any reasonable doubt as
to the timely collection of interest.
Interest receivable as of December 31, 2012 and September 30, 2011 is summarized as
follows:
2012
Securities
Loans receivable

$
$

131,822
1,233,261
1,365,083

2011
$
$

106,187
1,347,079
1,453,266

k.

Bank owned life insurance is carried at the cash surrender value. Changes in the cash
surrender value, including interest income, increases and decreases in value and policy
expenses, are recognized as a component of noninterest income.

l.

The Bank accounts for the reimbursement of covered assets under the FDIC Loss Share
Agreement (“FDIC indemnification asset”) in accordance with FASB ASC 805-20,
“Business Combinations-Identifiable Assets and Liabilities, and Any Noncontrolling
Interest.” The FDIC indemnification asset represents the present value of all the cash
flows from covered assets the Bank expects to collect from the FDIC. The discount on
the indemnification asset is being accreted over the expected term until FDIC payment is
received. As actual cash flows increase or decrease from what was expected at the
acquisition date, the FDIC indemnification asset will decrease and increase,
respectively, with the offset recognized in noninterest income in the consolidated
statements of earnings.
Covered assets that become impaired increase the
indemnification asset.

m.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are computed for differences between the financial
statement and tax basis of assets and liabilities which will result in taxable or deductible
amounts in the future based on enacted tax laws and rates applicable to the periods in
which the differences are expected to affect income. Valuation allowances are established
when necessary to reduce deferred tax assets to the amount that will more likely than not
be realized. Income tax expense is the tax payable or refundable for the period plus or
minus the net change in the deferred tax assets and liabilities.
A tax position is recognized as a benefit only if it is “more likely than not” that the tax
position would be sustained in a tax examination, with a tax examination being presumed
to occur. The amount recognized is the largest amount of tax benefit that is greater than
50% likely of being realized on examination. For tax positions not meeting the “more likely
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than not” test, no tax benefit is recorded. No adjustments were recognized for uncertain
tax positions at December 31, 2012 or September 30, 2011. The Company is subject to
U.S. Federal and Missouri income taxes and special financial institution taxes. Tax years
ending September 30, 2009 through 2012 remain open to examination by these
jurisdictions. The Company recognizes interest and penalties related to tax positions in
income tax expense. At December 31, 2012, there was no accrual for uncertain tax
positions or related interest.
n.

Under the measurement provisions of FASB ASC 718-10-30 and FASB ASC 718-10-35,
“Compensation – Stock Compensation,” compensation expense is recognized based on
the fair value of unvested stock awards at the implementation date and new awards
granted thereafter, which includes restricted stock and stock options, at the grant date and
is recognized on a straight–line basis over the requisite service period. The fair value of
stock options is estimated at the date of grant using the Black–Scholes pricing model and
related assumptions. The risk–free rate is based on the U.S. Treasury zero–coupon issue
with a remaining term equal to the expected term used as an assumption in the model.
The expected term is based on the average of the original contractual term and the vesting
term. TKHH[SHFWHGYRODWLOLW\LVEDVHGRQKLVWRULFDOYRODWLOLW\RIWKH&RPSDQ\·VVWRFN.

o.

For ESOP shares committed to be released, the Bank recognizes compensation expense
equal to the average fair value of the shares committed to be released during the period in
accordance with the provisions of FASB ASC 718-40-30, “Compensation – Stock
Compensation – Employee Stock Ownership Plans.”

p.

Earnings per share are based upon the weighted-average shares outstanding. ESOP
shares, which have been committed to be released and stock options, to the extent
dilutive, are considered outstanding. Under the treasury stock method, stock options are
GLOXWLYH ZKHQ WKH DYHUDJH PDUNHW SULFH RI WKH &RPSDQ\·V FRPPRQ VWRFN DQG HIIHFW RI
any unamortized compensation expense exceeds the option price during the year. In
addition, proceeds from the assumed exercise of dilutive stock options and related tax
benefit are assumed to be used to repurchase common stock at the average market
price during the period. FASB ASC 260-10, “Earnings Per Share,” requires unvested
restricted stock awards that contain non-forfeitable rights to dividends are participating
securities and are included in the EPS computation using the two-class method. Prior
period EPS data is adjusted retrospectively. Prior period per share amounts were not
impacted materially.
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Following is a summary of basic and diluted earnings per common share for the fifteen
months ended December 31, 2012 and year ended September 30, 2011:
2012

2011

Basic earnings per share:
Net earnings
Preferred stock dividend
Net earnings available to common stockholders
Less dividends paid:
Common stock
Participating securities
Undistributed earnings

$

$

Weighted-average basic securities
outstanding
Add: Weighted-average participating
securities outstanding
Total weighted-average basic shares
and participating securities outstanding
Distributed earnings per share
Undistributed earnings per share
Net earnings per share

3,667,705
699,221
2,968,484
729,176
4,485
2,234,823

$

$

3,708,216
3,708,216
337,171
2,428
3,368,617

3,177,293

3,433,142

59,800

24,280

3,237,093

3,457,422

$
$
$

0.23
0.69
0.92

$
$
$

0.10
0.97
1.07

$

2,234,823 $

3,368,617

3,237,093
40,611

3,457,422
4,976

3,277,704

3,462,398

Diluted earnings per share:
Undistributed earnings
Total weighted-average basic shares
and participating securities
outstanding
Add: Dilutive stock options
Total weighted-average diluted shares
and participating securities outstanding

Distributed earnings per share
Undistributed earnings per share
Net earnings per share

$
$
$

Anti-dilutive option shares

0.22 $
0.68 $
0.91 $
15,544

0.10
0.97
1.07
13,389

q.

Common stock shares repurchased are recorded at cost. Cost of shares retired or
reissued is determined using the first-in, first-out method.

r.

Transfers of financial assets are accounted for as sales, when control over the assets
has been surrendered. Control over transferred assets is deemed to be surrendered
when (1) the assets have been isolated from the Company - put presumptively beyond
the reach of the transferor and its creditors, even in bankruptcy or other receivership, (2)
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the transferee obtains the right (free of conditions that constrain it from taking advantage
of that right) to pledge or exchange the transferred assets and (3) the Company does not
maintain effective control over the transferred assets through an agreement to
repurchase them before their maturity or the ability to unilaterally cause the holder to
return specific assets.
s.

Comprehensive earnings consists of net earnings and other comprehensive earnings,
net of applicable income taxes. Other comprehensive earnings include unrealized
appreciation (depreciation) on available-for-sale securities and changes in the funded
status of defined benefit pension plans.

t.

Transfers in and out of Level 1 (quoted market prices), Level 2 (other significant
observable inputs) and Level 3 (significant unobservable inputs) are recognized on the
actual transfer date.

u.

The following paragraph summarizes recent accounting guidance and references to the
FASB ASC:
In July 2010, the FASB issued ASU 2010-20, “Receivables (Topic 310): Disclosures
about the Credit Quality of Financing Receivables and the Allowance for Credit Losses.”
Recent accounting guidance under ASC Topic 310, “Receivables,” provides additional
LQIRUPDWLRQ WR DVVLVW ILQDQFLDO VWDWHPHQW XVHUV LQ DVVHVVLQJ DQ HQWLW\·V FUHGLW ULVN
exposures and evaluating the adequacy of its allowance for credit losses. Existing
disclosure guidance is amended to require an entity to provide more information about
the credit quality indicators, past due information and modifications. Disclosures must
be disaggregated by portfolio segment (level at which an entity develops a methodology
to determine its allowance for credit losses) and class of financing receivable based
upon initial measurement attribute, risk characteristics and assessment of credit risk.
The disclosures are effective for annual reporting periods ending on or after December
15, 2011.

(2)

Risks and Uncertainties

The Bank is a community oriented financial institution, which provides traditional financial
services within the areas it serves. The Bank is engaged primarily in the business of attracting
deposits from the general public and using these funds to originate residential real estate loans,
commercial business, commercial real estate and consumer loans primarily to customers located
in Clay, Clinton, Jackson and Platte Counties of Missouri. Senior management of the Bank
monitors the level of net interest income and noninterest income from various products and
services. Further, operations of the Bank are managed and financial performance is evaluated on
an institution-wide basis. As a result, all of the Bank·s operations are considered by management
to be aggregated in one reportable operating segment.
The financial statements have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America. In preparing the financial statements,
management is required to make estimates and assumptions, which affect the reported amounts
of assets and liabilities as of the balance sheet dates and income and expenses for the years
covered. Actual results could differ significantly from these estimates and assumptions. Material
estimates that are particularly susceptible to significant change in the near term relate to
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determination of the allowance for loan losses, valuation of assets acquired in connection with
foreclosures or in satisfaction of loans, impairment of securities, FDIC indemnification asset and
fair values of financial instruments.
The Bank·s operations are affected by interest rate risk, credit risk and market risk. The
Bank is subject to interest rate risk to the degree its interest-bearing liabilities mature or reprice
more rapidly, or on a different basis, than its interest-earning assets. To better control the
impact of changes in interest rates, the Bank has sought to improve the match between asset
and liability maturities or repricing periods and rates by emphasizing the origination of
adjustable-rate mortgage loans, other loans with greater interest rate sensitivities than longterm, fixed rate loans and maintaining securities and advances from FHLB primarily with
maturities of less than 10 years. The Bank also emphasizes transaction accounts, which are
core deposits and treated favorably in measurement of interest rate risk.
The Bank uses a net market value methodology to measure its interest rate risk
exposure. This exposure is a measure of the potential decline in the net portfolio value of the
Bank based upon the effect of an assumed increase or decrease in interest rates in primarily
100 basis point increments. Net portfolio value is the expected net cash flows from the
institution·s assets, liabilities and off-balance sheet contracts. Credit risk is the risk of default on
the Bank·s loan portfolio that results from the borrowers· inability or unwillingness to make
contractually required payments. Market risk reflects changes in the values of collateral
underlying loans receivable and the valuations of foreclosed assets held by the Bank. The Bank
is subject to regulation by certain federal and state agencies and undergoes periodic
examinations by those regulatory authorities. The regulatory authorities may require the Bank
to record increases in the allowance based on their evaluations of available information. There
can be no assurance that the Bank·s regulators will not require further increases to the
allowances.
(3)

Business Combinations

On April 30, 2010, BankLiberty entered into a Loss Share Agreement with the FDIC to
acquire certain assets and assume all deposits of Champion Bank, headquartered in Creve
Coeur, Missouri. Under the Loss Share Agreement, the FDIC has agreed to reimburse the
Bank for 80% of the losses on covered assets, which include losses on loans at April 30, 2010,
accrued interest up to 90 days, the book value of foreclosed real estate, capitalized
expenditures and certain expenses. The term of the Loss Share Agreement for single-family
loans is 10 years for both losses and recoveries and for non-single-family loans is five years for
losses and eight years for recoveries.
Forty-five days following the tenth anniversary of the acquisition date, the Bank will be
required to pay the FDIC a calculated amount if losses do not reach the projected level. Such
calculated payment equals fifty-percent of the excess, if any of (i) 20 percent of the intrinsic loss
estimate of $37,000,000 less (ii) the sum of (A) 25 percent of the asset discount plus (B) 25
percent of the cumulative loss share payments plus (C) the cumulative servicing amount. At
December 31, 2012 and September 30, 2011, the estimated liability (“FDIC true-up liability”) of
such amount is approximately $592,000 and $566,000, respectively, which is included in other
liabilities in the consolidated balance sheets.
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The acquisition of Champion Bank was accounted for under the purchase method of
accounting in accordance with FASB ASC 805, “Business Combinations.” The assets acquired
and liabilities assumed were recorded at their respective acquisition date fair values based on a
valuation prepared by an independent third party, and the core deposit intangible was recorded at
fair value. The Company was permitted under FASB ASC 805 to recognized additional fair value
adjustments based on new information about facts and circumstances that existed as of the
acquisition date. The measurement period ended April 30, 2011.
The Bank determined the fair value of the loans acquired based upon several
assumptions. Factors considered included estimated cash flows for loans acquired, types of
loans, fixed or adjustable interest rates, terms of loans, current market discount rates and
payment statuses of loans. Loans were pooled according to similar characteristics when valuing
such loans. In addition, management estimated the amount of credit losses expected to be
realized for the acquired loans and foreclosed assets. The discounted cash flow approach was
generally utilized to value such assets.
Fair value yield adjustments on the assets acquired and liabilities assumed are
amortized over the contractual lives of the related assets and liabilities. The core deposit
intangible of $587,000 is amortized over four years using the straight-line method. A pre-tax
bargain purchase gain totaling $3,284,359 resulted from the fair value of assets acquired
exceeding liabilities assumed. The bargain purchase gain has been included as a component
of noninterest income in the consolidated statements of earnings.
The fair value of the related indemnification asset was measured separately using the
estimated cash flows for acquired loans and foreclosed real estate and the 80% loss share
reimbursement rate included in the Loss Share Agreement with the FDIC. These cash flows
were discounted to reflect the uncertainty of the timing and receipts of such reimbursements.
Following is a summary of activity in the FDIC indemnification asset for the fifteen
months ended December 31, 2012 and the year ended September 30, 2011:
2012
Balance, beginning of year
Net payments received from the FDIC
Recoveries (write-downs) and adjustments
Accretion
Balance, end of year

$

$

9,111,646
(2,734,623)
905,342
417,000
7,699,365

2011
21,921,688
(13,025,965)
(424,077)
640,000
9,111,646

In accordance with FASB ASC 805, the proforma requirement was considered; however,
due to the lack of information it was deemed impractical to provide the information required as the
Company was unable to substantiate any of the significant assumptions of management prior to
the acquisition.
On June 24, 2011, the Bank entered into a branch asset purchase and assumption
agreement with Enterprise Bank & Trust (“EBT”), a Missouri state-chartered depository
institution. Pursuant to the agreement, the Bank sold certain furniture and equipment
DVVRFLDWHGZLWKWKH%DQN·VEUDQFKORFDWHGDW2OLYH%RXOHYDUGLQWKH6W/RXLVVXEXUERI
Creve Coeur, Missouri. Additionally, deposits of approximately $43.0 million were assumed by
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EBT. This sale was completed on October 21, 2011. EBT paid $150,000 for the personal
property in the branch and a deposit premium of 0.75% on all deposit liabilities assumed at
closing. On April 13, 2012, the Bank sold its land lease position in the building in Creve Coeur,
Missouri and recognized a gain of $983,000.
(4)

Securities

The amortized cost and approximate fair values, together with gross unrealized gains
and losses, of securities are as follows:
2012
Gross
Unrealized
Gains

Amortized
Cost
Available for sale - debt securities:
State and municipal obligations
Mortgage-backed: Government
sponsored enterprises- residential

$

Available for sale - equity securities
$
Weighted-average rate

5,378,249

$

Gross
Unrealized
Losses

116,243

$

(636,726) $

Fair
Value

4,857,766

6,570,688
11,948,937

63,569
179,812

(118,645)
(755,371)

6,515,612
11,373,378

159,558

-

(43,688)

115,870

12,108,495

$

179,812

$

(799,059) $

11,489,248

3.80 %
2011
Gross
Unrealized
Gains

Amortized
Cost
Available for sale - debt securities:
State and municipal obligations
Mortgage-backed: Government
sponsored enterprises- residential

$

Available for sale - equity securities
$
Weighted-average rate

6,552,320

$

134,277

6,921,945
13,474,265

156,153
290,430

239,338

19,670

13,713,603

$

310,100

Gross
Unrealized
Losses

$

(230,545) $
(230,545)
-

$

(230,545) $

Fair
Value

6,456,052
7,078,098
13,534,150
259,008
13,793,158

4.08 %

Weighted-average rates are based on the coupon rates at the balance sheet dates.
Actual yields are expected to be lower and are affected by prepayments and related premium
amortization. The fair value of mortgage-backed securities and other debt securities pledged as
collateral to secure certain public deposits and for other purposes was $5,546,033 and
$2,959,441, respectively, at December 31, 2012 and $6,289,833 and $3,434,600, at September
30, 2011.
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Certain investments in debt and equity securities are reported in the consolidated
financial statements at amounts less than their historical costs. Total fair value of these
investments at December 31, 2012 and September 30, 2011, was $7,435,042 and $2,697,407,
ZKLFK LV DSSUR[LPDWHO\  DQG  UHVSHFWLYHO\ RI WKH &RPSDQ\·V DYDLODEOH-for-sale
investment portfolio. These declines primarily resulted from recent changes in market interest
rates and failure of certain investments to maintain consistent credit quality ratings.
TKHIROORZLQJWDEOHVKRZVWKH&RPSDQ\·VLQYHVWPHQWV·JURVVXQUHDOL]HGORVVHVDQGIDLU
YDOXH RI WKH &RPSDQ\·V LQYHVWPHQWV ZLWK XQUHDOL]HG ORVVHV WKDW DUH QRW GHHPHG WR EH RWKHUthan-temporarily impaired, aggregated by investment class and length of time that individual
securities have been in a continuous unrealized loss position at December 31, 2012 and
September 30, 2011:

December 31, 2012
Mortgage-backed securities

$

State and municipal obligations

Less than 12 Months

12 Months or Longer

Fair

Unrealized

Fair

Unrealized

Fair

Unrealized

Value

Loss

Value

Loss

Value

Loss

4,931,894

$

257,690

Available for sale - equity securities

5,305,454

$

(2,299)

115,870
$

(118,645)
(43,688)

$

(164,632)

-

$

2,129,588

-

Less than 12 Months

2,129,588

$

(634,427)

$

Total

$

(634,427)

4,931,894

$

2,387,278
115,870
$

7,435,042

12 Months or Longer

(118,645)
(636,726)
(43,688)

$

(799,059)

Total

September 30, 2011
State and municipal obligations

$

-

$

-

$

2,697,407

$

(230,545)

$

2,697,407

$

(230,545)

One state and municipal obligation with a carrying value of approximately $1.8 million
had an unrealized loss of approximately $613,000 at December 31, 2012. The Company
continuously monitors this security which is collateralized by tax increment financing (“TIF”)
revenues generated by commercial real estate. The Company has concluded there is no otherthan-temporary impairment as of December 31, 2012. The TIF district has generated sufficient
cash flows from normal and special assessments in calendar year 2012 to meet debt service
requirements. In addition, the TIF district has other cash reserves available for debt service.
Management of the Company does not intend to sell the securities with unrealized loss
positions and it is not more likely than not that the Company will be required to sell the securities
before recovery of their amortized cost bases, which may be upon maturity. Two state and
municipal obligations amounting to approximately $234,000 had credit ratings of A or better.
Five state and municipal obligations of approximately $2.1 million were not rated.
The amortized cost and fair value of available for sale debt securities at December 31,
2012, by contractual maturity, are shown below. Expected maturities will differ from contractual
maturities because issuers may have the right to call or prepay obligations with or without call or
prepayment penalties.
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Amortized
Cost
Within one year
One to five years
Five to ten years
After ten years

$

Agency mortgage-backed securities
$

Fair
Value

100,457 $
1,541,427
398,199
3,338,166
5,378,249
6,570,688
11,948,937

$

100,024
1,572,585
418,859
2,766,298
4,857,766
6,515,612
11,373,378

At December 31, 2012, securities with a carrying value of $2,101,102 are callable at the
discretion of the issuer prior to the maturity date.
Gross proceeds, gross realized gains and gross realized losses from sales of available
for sale securities were $9,135,772, $159,503 and $1,725, respectively, for the fifteen months
ended December 31, 2012. Gross proceeds, gross realized gains and gross realized losses
from sales of available for sale securities were $6,554,994, $161,025 and $1,387, respectively,
for the year ended September 30, 2011.
(5)

Loans Receivable, Net

Loans receivable, net, at December 31, 2012 and September 30, 2011 are summarized
as follows:
2012
Residential real estate
Construction and land development
Commercial real estate
Commercial
Consumer and other

$

Allowance for losses
Loans in process
Accretable discount on covered loans
Credit quality discount on covered loans
Deferred loan fees, net
$

90,172,918
39,877,281
124,495,909
42,659,840
31,676,658
328,882,606
(6,227,936)
(10,419,020)
(890,810)
(2,489,034)
219,175
309,074,981

2011
$

$

85,887,440
41,098,295
141,667,040
27,509,794
22,767,884
318,930,453
(4,422,917)
(8,241,858)
(434,007)
(2,744,731)
(224,654)
302,862,286

At December 31, 2012 and September 30, 2011, the Company held approximately $124
million and $142 million, respectively, in commercial real estate loans. At December 31, 2012
commercial real estate loans consisted of retail, industrial and other commercial real estate
properties. Due to national, state and local economic conditions, values for commercial and
development real estate have declined significantly, and the market for these properties is
depressed.
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Real estate construction loans at December 31, 2012 and September 30, 2011 are secured by
the following:
2012
Single-family, spec
Single-family, custom built

$

2011

11,110,110
1,282,062

Multi-family, 5 or more units

$

7,966,288
1,950,720

495,063

1,540,412

Commercial

5,530,207

4,002,510

Development

21,459,839

25,638,365

$

39,877,281

$

41,098,295

The following table presents the balance in the allowance for loan losses and the
recorded investment in loans based on portfolio segment and impairment method for the fifteen
months ended December 31, 2012:
Construction
and Land
Development

Residential
Real Estate
Allowance for Loan Losses
Balance, beginning of year
Provision charged to expense
Losses charged off
Recoveries
Balance, end of year
Ending balance: individually
evaluated for impairment
Ending balance: collectively
evaluated for impairment
Ending balance: loans acquired
with deteriorated credit quality
Loans
Ending balance
Ending balance: individually
evaluated for impairment
Ending balance: collectively
evaluated for impairment
Ending balance: loans acquired
with deteriorated credit quality

Commercial
Real Estate

Consumer
and Other

Commercial

Total

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

767,798
843,783
667,850
64,733
1,008,464 $

943,690
468,774
489,173
101,991
1,025,282 $

1,751,928
2,367,159
1,507,912
54,566
2,665,741 $

653,447
175,030
218
828,259 $

306,054
667,557
453,529
180,108
700,190 $

$

-

-

-

-

-

$

984,482 $

1,020,769 $

2,653,701 $

826,544 $

$

23,982 $

4,513 $

12,040 $

1,715 $

$
$

$

$

$

$

90,172,918 $ 39,877,281 $ 124,495,909 $ 42,659,840 $
3,347,240 $ 11,355,736 $

4,417,401 $

9,021,574 $

$

71,268,720 $ 25,227,350 $ 113,070,000 $ 31,891,820 $

$

15,556,958 $

3,294,195 $

7,008,508 $

1,746,446 $

$

700,190 $
-

4,422,917
4,522,303
3,118,682
401,398
6,227,936

$

6,185,686
42,250

31,676,658 $ 328,882,606
-

$

28,141,951

27,480,237 $ 268,938,127
4,196,421 $

31,802,528

The information shown above in the allowance for loan losses includes approximately
$186,000 in provision (negative), $73,000 in charge-offs and $120,000 in recoveries, leaving an
ending balance of $42,000 related to loans covered under ASC Topic 310-30. The allowance
for loan losses on loans acquired with deteriorated credit quality was $181,000 at September
30, 2011.
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Activity in the allowance for the year ended September 30, 2011 was as follows:
Balance, beginning of year

$

4,091,963

Loan charge-offs

(1,840,579)

Loan recoveries

138,629

Provision charged to expense
Balance, end of year

2,032,904
$

4,422,917

The Company utilizes an internal asset classification system as a means of reporting
SUREOHP DQG SRWHQWLDO SUREOHP ORDQV 8QGHUWKH &RPSDQ\·V ULVN UDWLQJ V\VWHPWKH &RPSDQ\
classifies problem and potential problem loans as “Watch,” “Special Mention,” “Substandard,”
“Doubtful” and “Loss.” The Company uses the following definitions for risk ratings:
Superior – Loans in this category present very limited risk. They are characterized by
loans to borrowers with unquestionable financial strength, a long history of excellent loan
performance and business experience. Loans to borrowers collateralized by cash or
equivalent liquidity may be included here. Loans secured, with margin, by readily
marketable collateral may also be included provided the relationship meets all other
characteristics of the grade. Loans secured by income producing collateral meeting the
criteria of this classification will have excellent documentation, payment history, cash
flow and low loan-to-value as well as current financial information.
Satisfactory - These loans are of average credit quality, are properly structured and
documented and require only normal supervision. Financial data is current and
document adequate revenue, cash flow and satisfactory payment history to indicate that
financial condition is satisfactory. Secured loans have properly margined collateral.
Repayment terms are realistic, clearly defined and based upon an identifiable source of
repayment.
Watch – These loans have characteristics of the “Satisfactory” rating, but warrant a
more than normal level of supervision because of an adverse economic event that may
DIIHFWWKHERUURZHU·VILQDQFLDOFRQGLWLRQ
i.
ii.
iii.

Adverse economic conditions within a particular industry;
Management turnover or lack of experience that may result in
deterioration of financial performance; and
Generally, the Loan should be upgraded or downgraded within a
year.

Special Mention – A special mention asset has potential weaknesses that deserve
PDQDJHPHQW·V FORVH DWWHQWLRQ  ,I OHIW XQFRUUHFWHG WKHVH SRWHQWLDO Zeaknesses may
UHVXOW LQ GHWHULRUDWLRQ RI WKH UHSD\PHQW SURVSHFWV IRU WKH DVVHW RU LQ WKH %DQN·V FUHGLW
position at some future date. Special mention assets are not adversely classified and do
not expose the bank to sufficient risk to warrant adverse classification.
Special mention classification does not apply to a loan that has as its sole
weakness credit data exceptions or collateral documentation exceptions that are not
PDWHULDO WR WKH WLPHO\ UHSD\PHQW RI WKH DVVHW  $Q DGYHUVH WUHQG LQ WKH REOLJRU·V
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oSHUDWLRQV RU WKH REOLJRU·V KLJKO\ OHYHUDJHG EDODQFH VKHHW PD\ ZDUUDQW D 6SHFLDO
Mention designation, provided that neither condition has deteriorated to the point that
timely repayment is jeopardized.
Substandard – Substandard loans are inadequately protected by the current sound
worth and paying capacity of the obligor or of the collateral pledged, if any. Loans so
classified must have a well-defined weakness or weaknesses that jeopardize the
liquidation of the debt. They are characterized by the distinct possibility that the bank
will sustain some loss if the deficiencies are not corrected.
Assets classified Substandard may be characterized by one or a combination of
the following weaknesses:
i.
ii.
iii.
iv.
v.
vi.

Primary source of repayment is gone or severely impaired and the
Bank may have to rely upon the secondary source;
Loss does not seem likely, but sufficient problems have arisen to
cause the Bank to go to extraordinary lengths to protect its
position in order to maintain a high probability of repayment;
Obligors are unable to generate enough cash flow to reduce their
debts;
There is a material deterioration in collateral value (if the collateral
is expected to be a primary source of repayment); or
Flaws in documentation leave the Bank in a subordinated or
unsecured position when the collateral is needed for the
repayment of the loan; or
The asset is (or was) a loan that is nonperforming or nonearning.
This includes REO and nonperforming loans and investments.

The presence of one or more of these factors does not mandate that the asset be
adversely classified if the Bank determines that it is probable that the asset will be fully
liquidated in a timely manner without loss of either principal or interest.
Doubtful – Loans classified Doubtful have all the weaknesses inherent in those
classified Substandard with the added characteristic that the weaknesses make
collection or liquidation in full, on the basis of currently known facts, conditions and
values, highly questionable and improbable. The likelihood of a loss on an asset or
portion of an asset classified Doubtful is high. The classification as Loss is not
appropriate, however, because pending events are expected to materially affect the
amount of loss.
Loss – Loans classified Loss are considered uncollectible and of such little value that
their continuance as bankable assets is not warranted. This classification does not
necessarily mean that the loan has absolutely no recovery or salvage value; but rather,
there is much doubt about whether, how much or when the recovery will occur. As such,
it is not practical or desirable to defer the write-off.
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7KH IROORZLQJ WDEOH SUHVHQWV WKH FUHGLW ULVN SURILOH RI WKH &RPSDQ\·V ORDQ SRUWIROLR EDVHG RQ
internal rating category and payment activity as of December 31, 2012:
Residential
Real Estate
Grade
Pass
Watch
Special Mention
Substandard
Doubtful

$

$

Construction
and Land
Development

79,778,466 $
2,929,139
3,655,426
3,809,887
90,172,918 $

Commercial
Real Estate

27,787,310 $ 98,713,095 $
196,365
21,006,745
24,771
11,868,835
4,776,069
39,877,281 $ 124,495,909 $

Commercial
31,155,111 $
2,432,979
4,475
9,067,275
42,659,840 $

Consumer
and Other

Total

31,676,658 $ 269,110,640
26,565,228
3,684,672
29,522,066
31,676,658 $ 328,882,606

7KH IROORZLQJ WDEOH SUHVHQWV WKH &RPSDQ\·V ORDQ SRUWIROLR DJLQJ DQDO\VLV DV RI 'HFHPEHr 31,
2012:

Residential real estate
Construction and land development
Commercial real estate
Commercial
Consumer and other

30-59 Days
60-89 Days Greater Than
Total Past
Past Due
Past Due
Due
Current
90 Days
$
103,720 $
205,551 $
378,080 $
687,351 $ 89,485,567 $
513,099
5,457,119
5,970,218
33,907,063
2,188,200
2,188,200
122,307,709
16,875
22,280
39,155
42,620,685
229,327
48,830
24,803
302,960
31,373,698
$ 3,051,221 $
276,661 $ 5,860,002 $ 9,187,884 $ 319,694,722 $

Total Loans
>90 Days &
Total Loans
Receivable
Accruing
90,172,918 $
39,877,281
124,495,909
42,659,840
31,676,658
328,882,606 $
-

A loan is considered impaired, in accordance with the impairment accounting guidance (ASC
310-10-35-16), when based on current information and events it is probable the Company will
be unable to collect all amounts due from the borrower in accordance with the contractual terms
of the loan. Impairment is measured on a loan-by-loan basis by either the present value of the
H[SHFWHG IXWXUH FDVK IORZV WKH ORDQ·V REVHUYDEOH PDUNHW YDOXH RU IRU FROODWHUDO-dependent
loans, the fair value of the collateral adjusted for market conditions and selling expenses.
The following table presents impaired loans at December 31, 2012:

Recorded
Balance
Loans without a specific allowance
Residential real estate
$
Construction and land development
Commercial real estate
Commercial
Consumer and other
Total
$

Unpaid
Principal
Balance

2,814,215 $ 3,412,873 $
10,718,236
11,424,236
3,546,013
3,768,493
1,977,634
1,977,634
24,803
24,803
19,080,901 $ 20,608,039 $

Average
Investment in
Impaired
Loans

Specific
Allowance
-

$

2,220,666 $
6,794,338
3,366,267
988,817
42,202
$ 13,412,290 $

Interest
Income
Recognized
40,630
522,204
306,169
97,997
2,122
969,122

Interest Income recognized on impaired loans includes interest accrued and collected on
the outstanding balances of accruing impaired loans as well as interest cash collections on nonaccruing impaired loans for which the ultimate collectibility is not certain.
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7KH IROORZLQJ WDEOH SUHVHQWV WKH &RPSDQ\·V QRQDFFUXDO ORDQV DW 'HFHPEHU  
This table excludes purchased impaired loans and performing troubled debt restructurings.
Residential real estate
Construction and land development
Commercial real estate
Commercial
Consumer and other
Total

$

$

2,436,135
9,421,236
946,179
1,977,634
24,803
14,805,987

When economic concessions have been granted to borrowers who have experienced financial
difficulties, the loan is considered a troubled debt restructuring. These concessions typically
result from loss mitigation activities and could include: reductions in the interest rate, payment
extensions, forgiveness of principal, forbearance or other actions. Troubled debt restructurings
are considered impaired at the time of restructuring and typically are returned to accrual status
DIWHUFRQVLGHULQJWKHERUURZHU·VVXVWDLQHGUHSD\PHQWSHUIRUPDQFHDVDJUHHGIRUDUHDVonable
period of at least six months or once the granted concessions have ended or are no longer
applicable.
The following table presents the recorded balance, at original cost, of troubled debt
restructurings as of December 31, 2012:
TDRs Performing in accordance with Modified
Terms

Residential real estate
Construction and land development
Commercial real estate
Total

$

$

Total TDRs
2,436,135 $
7,920,073
3,546,013
13,902,221 $

Accruing
$
1,297,000
2,599,834
3,896,834 $

TDRs Not
Performing in
Accordance
with Modified
Nonaccrual
Terms
2,436,135 $
6,623,073
5,457,119
946,179
10,005,387 $
5,457,119

The troubled debt restructurings as of December 31, 2012, included 10 loans totaling
approximately $12.4 million which had interest rate concessions and two loans totaling
approximately $1.5 million which had payments modified to interest only.
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Loans classified as troubled debt restructurings during the fifteen months ended
December 31, 2012, were:
Number of
Loans
2 $
4
1
7 $

Residential real estate
Construction and land development
Commercial real estate
Total

Recorded
Balance
2,436,135
4,092,153
293,336
6,821,624

There were no material differences between the pre-modification and post-modification
balances.
A summary of nonperforming loans as of September 30, 2011:
2011
Impaired loans without a valuation allowance

$

178,332

Impaired loans with a valuation allowance

7,565,348

Total Impaired Loans

7,743,680

Valuation allowance related to impaired loans

$

209,704

Total nonaccrual loans

$

4,123,437

Total loans past due 90 days or more and still accruing

$

Average investment in impaired loans

$

12,148,616

Interest income that would have been recognized

$

486,080

Interest income recognized

$

197,097

-

Loans to directors, executive officers and associates of such persons did not exceed
$60,000 in the aggregate for the fifteen months ended December 31, 2012 and the year ended
September 30, 2011.
Loans acquired in the Champion Bank transaction were recorded at estimated fair value
on their purchase date without a carryover of the related allowance for loan losses. Purchased
credit-impaired loans approximating $17.3 million at December 31, 2012 are loans that have
evidence of credit deterioration since origination and it is probable that the Bank will not collect
all contractually required principal and interest payments.
Evidence of credit quality
deterioration may include factors such as past due and non-accrual status. Other purchased
loans that are not credit-impaired approximating $10.1 million at December 31, 2012 were
determined based on estimates of losses on defaults. The difference between contractually
required payments at acquisition and the cash flows expected to be collected at acquisition is
referred to as the non-accretable difference. Subsequent increases in cash flows result in a
reversal of the provision for loan losses to the extent of prior charges or a reclassification of the
difference from non-accretable to accretable with a positive impact on interest income.
Subsequent decreases in cash flows result in impairment recognition through the recording of
an estimated fair value is referred to as the accretable yield and is recognized into interest

F-26

LIBERTY BANCORP, INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
income over the remaining life of the loan when there is a reasonable expectation about the
amount and timing of such cash flows.
In the acquisition of the assets of Champion Bank, the preliminary fair value of
purchased credit-impaired loans, on the acquisition date, was determined based on assigned
risk ratings, expected cash flows and the fair value of the loan collateral. Due to the loss
sharing agreement with the FDIC, the Bank recorded receivables from the FDIC equal to the
corresponding reimbursement percentages on the estimated losses embedded in the loan
portfolios. The carrying amount of purchased loans covered under the loss share agreement at
December 31, 2012 and September 30, 2011 consisted of purchased credit-impaired loans and
non-credit impaired loans as shown in the following table:

$

2012
15,556,958 $
3,294,195
7,008,508
1,746,446
4,196,421
31,802,528 $
(1,022,666)
(890,810)
(2,489,034)
27,400,018 $

2011
19,877,950
3,933,324
11,131,694
4,125,632
5,554,911
44,623,511
(2,396,066)
(434,007)
(2,744,731)
(2,232)
39,046,475

Carrying amount, net of allowance of $42,250 and
$181,361 at 2012 and 2011, respectively

$

27,357,769 $

38,865,114

Estimated reimbursable amounts from the
FDIC under the loss-share agreement

$

7,176,695 $

9,111,646

Residential real estate
Construction and land development
Commercial real estate
Commercial
Consumer and other
Total covered loans
Loans in process
Accretable discount on covered loans
Credit quality discount on covered loans
Deferred loan fees, net

$

$

Accretable yield, or income expected to be recorded, at December 31, 2012 and
September 30, 2011, is as follows:
Balance, beginning of year
Additions
Accretion
Reclassification from nonaccretable difference
Disposals/paydowns
Balance, end of year

$

$

2012
434,007 $
(133,428)
590,231
890,810 $

2011
434,007
434,007

The Bank received approximately $2.7 million and $13.0 million in payments from the
FDIC for covered losses in 2012 and 2011, respectfully.
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(6)

Premises and Equipment, Net
Premises and equipment, net, are summarized as follows:
December 31,
2012

Land
Office buildings
Furniture and equipment
Building-in-progress

$

Less accumulated depreciation
$

September 30,
2011

3,502,466 $
8,755,945
5,447,689
122,661
17,828,761
6,915,573
10,913,188 $

3,502,466
9,678,222
5,216,039
18,396,727
6,153,876
12,242,851

Depreciation expense for the fifteen months ended 2012 and the year ended September
30, 2011 was $803,921 and $696,709, respectively.
The Bank leases the land for one branch office located in Kansas City. The lease
expires in November 2021. The Bank has four successive options to extend the lease term for
five years each and a fifth option for a three year period.
Total land lease expense for the fifteen months ended December 31, 2012 and the year
ended September 30, 2011 was $212,009 and $254,949, respectively.
Future minimum lease payments are summarized as follows:
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
Thereafter

$

$

(7)

100,784
100,784
100,784
100,784
100,784
394,738
898,658

Goodwill and Core Deposit Intangibles, Net

Goodwill was recognized in connection with the acquisition of KLT Bancshares, Inc., the
parent company of Farley State Bank, in November 2008. Under FASB ASC 350, “Intangibles Goodwill and Other,” goodwill is evaluated annually for impairment. A qualitative assessment is
performed to determine whether the existence of events or circumstances leads to a
determination that it is more likely than not the fair value is less than the carrying amount,
including goodwill. If, based on the evaluation, it is determined to be more likely than not that
the fair value is less than the carrying value, then goodwill is tested further for impairment. If the
implied fair value of goodwill is lower than its carrying amount, a goodwill impairment is
indicated and goodwill is written down to its implied fair value. Subsequent increases in
goodwill value are not recognized in the financial statements.
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The first step requires that the Company compare the fair value of a reporting unit with
its carrying amount. If the fair value of the reporting unit exceeds the carrying value, goodwill is
not impaired. If the carrying value exceeds the fair value of the reporting unit, the second step
is performed to determine the amount of impairment, if any. The second step compares the
implied value of the reporting unit·s goodwill with the carrying amount of such goodwill. The
implied value of goodwill is the excess of the fair value of the reporting unit over the aggregate
fair values of the individual assets, liabilities and identifiable assets as if the reporting unit had
been acquired in a business combination and the fair value of the reporting unit was the price
paid to acquire the reporting unit.
Management determined the Bank is the reporting unit for purposes of evaluating
goodwill. Under the first step, the fair value of the reporting unit was determined using recent
transactions from comparable banks from an independent third party, including transaction
value to total assets, tangible book value, last fifteen months net earnings and a control
premium.
After weighting each valuation approach, the fair value of the Bank was determined to
exceed the carrying amount. As a result, goodwill was not impaired at either December 31,
2012 or September 30, 2011.
The gross carrying value and accumulated amortization of the core deposit intangibles
related to the acquisitions of Champion Bank and Farley State Bank is presented below:
December 31,
2012
Core deposit intangibles
Accumulated amortization

$
$

1,643,000
(1,218,500)
424,500

September 30,
2011
$
$

1,643,000
(947,153)
695,847

The core deposit intangible is tested for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
Amortization expense on core deposit intangibles for the fifteen months ended
December 31, 2012 and the year ended September 30, 2011 was $271,347 and $199,070,
respectively.
Estimated amortization expense on core deposit intangibles for the next five years is as
follows:
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017

$
$
$
$
$
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Deposits
Deposits are summarized as follows:
December 31,
2012

Non-interest bearing NOW accounts
NOW accounts
Statement accounts
Money market accounts
Total transaction accounts
Certificates:

$

0.08 - 0.99%
1.00 - 1.99%
2.00 - 2.99%
3.00 - 3.99%
4.00 - 4.99%
Total certificates
Total deposits

$

35,630,885
35,763,696
14,144,314
89,055,438
174,594,333

66,771,163
34,391,081
19,527,370
7,349,481
37,158
128,076,253
302,670,586

September 30,
2011
$

$

28,538,248
29,824,713
12,345,691
105,405,635
176,114,287

51,985,639
54,183,298
29,846,760
12,066,852
1,372,077
149,454,626
325,568,913

At December 31, 2012 and September 30, 2011, deposits included brokered certificates
of $17,776,000 and $10,810,000, respectively. Approximately $100,000 of brokered deposits
mature in 2013, $2.0 million in 2014, $8.9 million in 2015, $5.0 million in 2016, and $1.7 million
in 2017.
At December 31, 2012, the scheduled maturities of certificates are as follows:
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017

$

$

71,384,849
18,280,313
18,061,915
15,846,326
4,502,850
128,076,253

Transaction accounts and certificates in denominations of $100,000 or more amounted to
$88,538,029 and $73,109,740 at December 31, 2012, respectively, and $84,451,516 and
$72,225,793 at September 30, 2011, respectively. Generally, deposits in excess of $250,000
are not Federally insured. Approximately $32.5 million of certificates of $100,000 or more
mature within one year.
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Interest expense on deposits is summarized as follows:
December 31,
2012
NOW accounts
Passbook accounts
Money market accounts
Certificates

$

$

103,452
32,214
601,080
2,164,759
2,901,505

September 30,
2011
$

$

90,154
30,795
850,558
2,159,096
3,130,603

Deposits from directors, executive officers and other affiliates were not material to total
deposits at December 31, 2012 and September 30, 2011.
(9)

Advances from FHLB
Advances from FHLB are summarized as follows:
Final
Maturity Date

Within one year
One to three years
After three to five years
After five years

Average Interest Rate
at December 31, 2012
0.56%
3.18%
2.52%
2.54%

December 31,
2012
$

$

Weighted-average rate

21,500,000
$
8,000,000
7,826,104
3,418,368
40,744,472
$
1.62 %

September 30,
2011
20,074,846
32,000,000
3,000,000
11,331,907
66,406,753
1.95 %

In the FDIC assisted acquisition with Champion Bank in 2010, the Bank assumed
advances from the FHLB with a fair value of $30,728,000, including a premium of $2,328,000.
Such premium is being recognized in interest expense using a method which approximates the
interest method over the remaining term of such advances.
At December 31, 2012, advances from FHLB are secured by FHLB stock and loans
amounting to $90,214,526. The Bank had unused credit available under the FHLB advance
program of approximately $38.2 million at December 31, 2012.
At December 31, 2012 and September 30, 2011, the Bank had an unused line of credit
with another bank of $5.0 million.
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Securities Sold Under Agreements to Repurchase

Securities sold under agreements to repurchase, which are classified as borrowings, are
reflected at the amount of cash received in connection with transactions, plus interest credited.
The Bank may be required to provide additional collateral based on the fair values of the
underlying securities. The securities sold under agreements to repurchase are under the
Bank·s control. These agreements to repurchase are summarized as follows:
December 31,
2012

September 30,
2011

Securities sold under agreements to repurchase

$

3,117,385

$

896,750

Fair value of securities

$

3,466,856

$

1,899,263

Average balance

$

1,532,196

$

979,782

Maximum balance at any month end

$

3,117,385

$

1,356,403

(11)

Income Taxes

The Company and Bank file consolidated income tax returns. The Bank is permitted to
make additions to the tax bad debt reserve using the experience method.
The Company and Bank was recently subject to an examination by the Internal Revenue
Service for taxable years ending September 30, 2010 and 2011. The examination focused on
the accounting related to the purchase of certain assets and liabilities associated with the
acquisition of the former Champion Bank in Creve Coeur, Missouri. The examination has been
concluded with no adjustment to the current payable or permanent differences which would
result in an adjustment to WKH &RPSDQ\·V RU %DQN·V recorded balances. The examination did
result in a change of the timing of recognizing certain income and expense items between
WD[DEOH\HDUV7KHVHDGMXVWPHQWVKDYHEHHQUHIOHFWHGLQWKH%DQN·VFXUUHQWDQGGHIHUUHGWD[
accounts. Penalties and interest as a result of the adjustments were insignificant.
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The components of the net deferred tax asset are summarized as follows:
December 31,

September 30,

2012

2011

Deferred tax liabilities:
FHLB stock dividends

$

(81,144) $

Net unrealized gain on securities available for sale

-

Purchase accounting adjustments-Farley State Bank

(22,157)

(351,499)

Purchase accounting adjustments-Champion Bank
Total deferred tax liabilities

(140,625)
(406,481)

165,738

(1,176,757)

(266,905)

(1,746,020)

Deferred tax assets:
Accrued income and expense and deferred loan fees

81,311

Net unrealized losses on securities available for sale

189,281

212,956

-

Allowance for loan losses

2,231,870

1,493,271

Premises and equipment

80,814

114,730

OREO

331,202

-

Benefit plan expense recognition

213,896

259,421

Other
Total deferred tax assets
Net deferred tax asset

$

119,409

322,146

3,271,458

2,378,849

3,004,553

$

632,829

The provisions of FASB ASC 942-740-35, “Financial Services – Depository and Lending
– Income Taxes,” require the Bank to establish a deferred tax liability for the effect of the tax
bad debt reserves over the amounts at September 30, 1988. The Bank·s tax bad debt reserves
were $3,588,000 at September 30, 1988. The estimated deferred tax liability on such amount is
approximately $1,220,000, which has not been recorded in the accompanying financial
statements. If these tax bad debt reserves are used for other than loan losses, the amount
used will be subject to Federal income taxes at the then prevailing corporate rate.
Income taxes are summarized as follows:
December 31,

September 30,

2012

2011

Current:
Federal

$

State

2,709,000

$

1,886,000

319,000

233,000

3,028,000

2,119,000

Deferred:
Federal

(1,945,000)

State
$
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(213,000)

(229,000)

(125,000)

(2,174,000)

(338,000)

854,000

$

1,781,000
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The provision for income taxes differs from the Federal statutory corporate tax rate as follows:

Federal statutory income tax rate
Increases (decreases) in tax rate:
Tax exempt income
Change in cash surrender value of BOLI
Nondeductible stock option expense
State taxes, net of Federal tax benefit
Average fair value versus cost of ESOP shares
Other, net
Tax rate

(12)

Percentage of Earnings
Before Income Taxes
December 31,
September 30,
2012
2011
34.0%
34.0%
(2.7)
(5.1)
4.3
0.1
(12.6)
18.0%

(2.2)
(2.7)
0.2
2.4
0.1
0.7
32.5%

Employee Benefits
Defined Contribution Pension Plan (401(k) Plan)

The Bank maintains a defined contribution pension plan, which covers substantially all
employees. Participants can contribute from 2% to 15% of their salary of which the Bank will
match 50% of the employee contribution, up to a maximum of 5% of the employee·s salary.
Participants are fully vested after five years of service. Pension plan expense was $105,210
and $78,283 for the fifteen months ended December 31, 2012 and the year ended September
30, 2011, respectively.
Directors· Benefit Plans
The Bank has adopted a retirement plan for directors elected before 1994. The plan
provides that each non-employee director (participant) shall receive upon retirement a benefit in
equal annual installments over a ten-year period. The annual benefit will be based upon the
product of the participant·s vesting percentage and $8,000 for currently retired directors and
surviving spouses. For three directors covered under the plan, the annual benefit was amended
and is $15,000 per year for ten years.
Retirement plan expense was $29,783 and $21,396 for December 31, 2012 and
September 30, 2011, respectively. The accumulated retirement plan benefit obligation was
$203,033 and $195,817 at December 31, 2012 and September 30, 2011, respectively.
The Bank also provides postretirement medical benefits to directors, elected before 1994,
and their spouses. The liability for such benefits is unfunded. The accumulated postretirement
benefit obligation, which represents the present value of the estimated future benefits payable to
plan participants attributed to service rendered to date, will be recognized on a delayed basis as a
component of net periodic cost for postretirement medical benefits.
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Postretirement medical benefits for three directors and their spouses have been amended
from the current plan of lifetime health insurance coverage to benefits of $500 per month for each
of the directors and spouses, not to exceed twenty years.
Postretirement medical benefits plan expense was $7,242 and $2,904 for the fifteen
months ended December 31, 2012 and the year ended September 30, 2011, respectively. The
accumulated postretirement medical benefit obligation was $137,457 and $164,857 for
December 31, 2012 and September 30, 2011, respectively.
Employee Stock Ownership Plan (ESOP)
The Bank has established an ESOP for the benefit of participating employees. No new
employees are eligible to participate in the ESOP and all current employees participating in the
ESOP are 100% vested in their accounts. Benefits become payable upon a participant's
retirement, death, disability or separation from service.
Stock Options
As authorized by the 2003 Incentive Equity and Deferred Compensation Plan (the “2003
Plan”), the Board of Directors granted 78,760 options to non-employee directors and 96,260 to
certain officers and employees during fiscal year 2004. The Plan authorizes the award of up to
258,063 shares of common stock, subject to restrictions, to be issued to directors, officers and
employees of the Bank. The Plan provides for the grant of stock options, stock appreciation
rights, restricted stock and unrestricted stock. Options expire 10 years from the date of the grant.
Stock options to directors are fully vested on the grant date of June 16, 2004. Options granted to
the Bank·s CEO vested over three years and three months and options granted to certain other
officers and employees vested over a five-year period. On January 27, 2005 the Board of
Directors granted an additional 38,504 options to certain officers and employees. Options granted
to the CEO vested over a period of three years and eight months and options granted to certain
officers and employees vest over a five-year period. On November 23, 2005 the Board of
Directors granted an additional 42,440 options to directors and officers. Options granted to the
board, CEO and certain officers were vested over a ten-month period.
As authorized by the Liberty Bancorp, Inc. 2007 Equity Incentive Plan (the “2007 Plan”),
the Board of Directors granted 25,150 options to non-employee directors and 65,500 options to
certain officers and employees on February 27, 2007. On April 1, 2009, 5,000 options were
granted to one employee. The 2007 Plan authorizes the award of up to 100,691 options to
purchase shares of common stock, subject to restrictions, to be issued to directors, officers and
employees of the Bank. The Plan provides for the grant of stock options, stock appreciation rights,
restricted stock and unrestricted stock. Options expire ten years from the date of the grant. All
95,650 options granted vest over a five-year period.
As authorized by the Liberty Bancorp, Inc. 2012 Equity Incentive Plan (the “2012 Plan”),
the Board of Directors granted 48,000 options to non-employee directors and 20,000 options to
certain officers on May 24, 2012. The 2012 Plan authorizes the award of up to 68,000 options to
purchase shares of common stock, subject to restrictions, to be issued to directors and officers.
The Plan provides for the grant of stock options, stock appreciation rights, restricted stock and
unrestricted stock. Options expire ten years from the date of the grant. All 68,000 options
granted vest over a five-year period.
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The Company has estimated the fair value of awards granted for the fifteen months ended
December 31, 2012 under its stock option plan utilizing the Black-Scholes pricing model to be
$1.65 per option. The assumptions used in the Black-Scholes model were as follows:
2012
Expected dividend yield
Risk-free interest rate
Expected life of options
Expected volatility

1.00%
1.33%
7.50 years
15.00%

The expected dividend yield is based on the current quarterly dividend in effect at the time
of the grant. The risk-free interest rate is based on the seven-year U.S. Treasury Constant. The
expected life of options is based on the average of the option life of 10 years and vesting period of
five years. The expected volatility is based on historical volatility of the Company·V stock.
Stock option compensation expense for the fifteen months ended December 31, 2012 and
the year ended September 30, 2011, is as follows:
2012

2011

Pretax

$

54,345

$

41,859

After tax

$

43,408

$

38,118

Basic and diluted earnings per share

$

0.01

$

0.01

At December 31, 2012, the total unrecognized compensation expense related to
nonvested stock options was $79,621 and is expected to be recognized over the weightedaverage period of 4.05 years.
Stock options, granted, exercised or forfeited are as follows:
Weighted-

Outstanding at September 30, 2010
Exercised
Forfeited

Weighted-

Average

Number

Average

Contractual

of

Exercise

Term in

Shares

Price

Years

326,488

$

(3,500)
(3,000)

8.37

4.78

-

-

-

-

Outstanding at September 30, 2011
Granted
Exercised
Forfeited
Outstanding at December 31, 2012
Exercisable at December 31, 2012

319,988 $
88,800
(34,504)
(2,000)
372,284 $
296,284 $

8.54
9.92
9.86

3.78
2.01
2.92

Vested and expected to vest at
December 31, 2012

296,284

9.86

2.92

$

F-36

LIBERTY BANCORP, INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
A summary of the total value of options exercised, the amount of cash received from the
exercise of stock options and the fair value of shares vested is as follows for the fifteen months
ended December 31, 2012 and year ended September 30, 2011:
2012

2011

Cash received from the exercise of options

$

236,352

$

33,250

Fair value of shares vested

$

339,146

$

172,274

Restricted Stock Awards
During fiscal year 2004, as authorized by the 2003 Plan, two directors each received a
restricted stock award of 6,125 shares, which vested over three years. On February 27, 2007,
as authorized by the 2007 Plan, the Board of Directors granted 31,400 restricted stock awards
to non-employee directors and 78,000 awards to certain officers and employees. The 2007
Plan authorizes the award of up to 125,649 shares of common stock, subject to restrictions, to
be issued to directors, officers and employees of the Bank. Subsequently, 125,649 shares were
repurchased by a trust to fund the restricted stock awards. All awards vest over a five-year
period. On May 24, 2012, as authorized by the 2012 Plan, the Board of Directors granted
24,000 restricted stock awards to non-employee directors and 25,000 awards to certain officers.
All awards vest over a five-year period. No stock appreciation rights or unrestricted stock have
been granted to date.
A summary of the Company·s restricted stock compensation expense for the fifteen
months ended December 31, 2012 and year ended September 30, 2011, is as follows:
2012
Pretax
After tax

$
$

2011
223,143 $
145,043 $

253,368
164,689

At December 31, 2012, the total unrecognized expense was $510,277 and is expected
to be recognized over 3.86 years.
A summary of the Company·s nonvested stock award activity for 2012 is as follows:

Nonvested at October 1, 2010
Vested
Forfeited
Nonvested at October 1, 2011
Awarded
Vested
Forfeited
Nonvested at December 31, 2012

Number of Nonvested
Shares
47,760
(22,280)
(1,200)
24,280
61,250
(24,530)
(1,000)
60,000
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WeightedAverage
Grant Date
Fair Value
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

10.89
11.07
11.27
10.72
10.02
10.92
9.50
9.94
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(13)

Participation in the Small Business Lending Fund of the U.S. Treasury Department

On August 23, 2011, the Company entered into a Securities Purchase Agreement with
the Secretary of the Treasury, pursuant to which the Company issued and sold to the Treasury
16,169 shares of its Senior Non-Cumulative Perpetual Preferred Stock, Series A, having a
liquidation preference of $1,000 per share, for aggregate proceeds of $16,169,000. The
LVVXDQFHZDVSXUVXDQWWRWKH7UHDVXU\·V6PDOO %XVLQHVV/HQGLQJ)XQGSURJUDPDELOOLRQ
fund established under the Small Business Jobs Act of 2010, which encourages lending to small
businesses by providing capital to qualified community banks with assets of less than $10
billion. The Series A Preferred Stock is entitled to receive non-cumulative dividends payable
quarterly on each January 1, April 1, July 1 and October 1, beginning October 1, 2011. The
October 1, 2011 dividend was paid in the approximate amount of $85,000. This dividend was
for accrued dividends due for the period August 23, 2011 through September 30, 2011. The
January 1, 2013 dividend was paid in the approximate amount of $85,000. This dividend was
for accrued dividends due for the period October 1, 2012 through December 31, 2012.
Dividends paid for the fifteen month period ended December 31, 2012 were $699,221. This
preferred stock qualifies as Tier 1 capital. The dividend rate, which is calculated on the
aggregate Liquidation Amount, has been initially set at five percent per annum based on the
current level of “Qualified Small Business Lending” (“QSBL”) by the Bank. The dividend rate for
the initial period ending October 1, 2011 was five percent per annum. The dividend rate for
future dividend periods will be set based upon the percentage change in qualified lending
between each dividend period and the baseline QSBL level established at which time the
Agreement was entered. Such dividend rate may vary from one percent per annum to five
percent per annum for the second through tenth dividend periods, from one percent per annum
to seven percent per annum for the eleventh quarter through four and one half years after
issuance. If the Series A Preferred Stock remains outstanding for more than four-and-one-half
years, the dividend rate will be fixed at nine percent. Prior to that time, in general, the dividend
UDWHGHFUHDVHVDVWKHOHYHORIWKH%DQN·V46%L increases. Such dividends are not cumulative,
but the Company may only declare and pay dividends on its common stock (or any other equity
securities junior to the Series A Preferred Stock) if it has declared and paid dividends for the
current dividend period on the Series A Preferred Stock, and will be subject to other restrictions
on its ability to repurchase or redeem other securities.
The Series A Preferred Stock is non-voting, except in limited circumstances.
In the
event that the Company misses five dividend payments, whether or not consecutive, the holder
of the Series A Preferred Stock will have the right, but not the obligation, to appoint a
UHSUHVHQWDWLYH WR DWWHQG DOO PHHWLQJV RI WKH &RPSDQ\·V %RDUG RI 'LUHFWRUV LQ D QRQYRWLQJ
observer capacity.
The Company may redeem the shares of Series A Preferred Stock, in whole or in part,
at any time at a redemption price equal to the sum of the Liquidation Amount per share and the
per-share amount of any unpaid dividends for the then-current period, subject to any required
SULRUDSSURYDOE\WKH&RPSDQ\·VSULPDU\IHGHUDOEDQNLQJUHJXODWRU
(14)

Stockholders· Equity and Minimum Regulatory Capital Requirements

The Bank is subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by the federal
banking agencies. Failure to meet minimum capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory
and possibly additional discretionary actions by regulators that, if undertaken, could have a direct
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material effect on the Bank·s financial statements. Under capital adequacy guidelines and the
regulatory framework for prompt corrective action, the Bank must meet specific capital guidelines
that involve quantitative measures of assets, liabilities and certain off-balance sheet items as
calculated under regulatory accounting practices. The Bank·s capital amounts and classification
are also subject to qualitative judgments by the regulators about components, risk weightings and
other IDFWRUV)XUWKHUPRUHWKH%DQN·VUHJXODWRUVFRXOGUHTXLUHDGMXVWPHQWVWRUHJXODWRU\FDSLtal
not reflected in these financial statements.
Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require the
Bank to maintain minimum amounts and ratios (set forth in the table below) of total and Tier 1
capital (as defined in the regulations) to risk-weighted assets (as defined) and of Tier 1 capital to
average assets (as defined). Management believes, as of December 31, 2012 and September
30, 2011, that the Bank meets all capital adequacy requirements to which it is subject.
At December 31, 2012 the most recent notification from the Office of the Comptroller of the
Currency categorized the Bank as well capitalized under the regulatory framework for prompt
corrective action. To be categorized as well capitalized, the Bank must maintain minimum total
risk-based, Tier 1 risk-based and Tier 1 leverage ratios as set forth in the following table. There
are no conditions or events since that notification that management believes have changed the
Bank·s category.
The Bank·s actual and required capital amounts and ratios at December 31, 2012 are as
follows:
Minimum
Actual
Amount

Ratio

Required

for Capital

to be “Well

Adequacy

Capitalized”

Amount

Ratio

Amount

Ratio

(Dollars in Thousands)
6WRFNKROGHUV·HTXLW\

$

Goodwill and core deposit intangibles

(1,616)

Unrealized gain, net – benefit plans

(16)

Unrealized loss on securities AFS, net
Tangible capital

62,013

362
$

General valuation allowance

60,743

14.8% $

6,177

1.5%

4,132

Total capital to risk-weighted assets

$

64,875

19.7% $

26,284

8.0% $

32,855

10.0%

Tier 1 capital to risk-weighted assets

$

60,743

18.5% $

13,142

4.0% $

19,713

6.0%

Tier 1 capital to total assets

$

60,743

14.8% $

16,473

4.0% $

20,591

5.0%
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7KH %DQN·V DFWXDO DQG UHTXLred capital amounts and ratios at September 30, 2011 are as
follows:
Minimum
for Capital
Actual
Amount

Capitalized”

Adequacy
Ratio

Amount

Required
to be “Well

Ratio

Amount

Ratio

(Dollars in Thousands)
6WRFNKROGHUV·HTXLW\

$

Computer software costs

(130)

Goodwill and core deposit intangibles

(1,887)

Unrealized gain, net – benefit plans

(31)

Unrealized loss on securities AFS, net
Tangible capital

61,971

(38)
$

General valuation allowance

59,885

13.0% $

6,909

1.5%

4,133

Total capital to risk-weighted assets

$

64,018

19.3% $

26,601

8.0% $

33,251

10.0%

Tier 1 capital to risk-weighted assets

$

59,885

18.0% $

13,301

4.0% $

19,951

6.0%

Tier 1 capital to total assets

$

59,885

13.0% $

18,424

4.0% $

23,031

5.0%

Federal regulations do not permit cash dividend payments if the Bank·s capital would be
reduced below the amount of the minimum capital requirements or the liquidation account. A
liquidation account was established at the time of Conversion in an amount equal to the capital of
the Bank as of the date of the latest balance sheet contained in the final prospectus dated May
15, 2006.
During the fifteen months ended December 31, 2012 and year ended September 30,
2011, the Company paid cash dividends of $1,432,882 and $339,599, respectively.
On November 17, 2011 a fifth stock repurchase program was approved to acquire up to
329,334, RURIWKH&RPSDQ\·VFRPPRQVWRFN5HSXUFKDVHVZLOOEHFRQGXFWHGWKURXJKRSHQ
market purchases or privately negotiated transactions, from time to time depending on market
conditions and other factors. There is no guarantee as to the exact number of shares to be
repurchased by the Company. The Company has repurchased 287,574 shares under this
program.
(15)

Off-Balance Sheet Risk, Commitments and Contingencies

The Company is a party to financial instruments with off-balance sheet risk in the normal
course of business to meet the financing needs of its customers. These financial instruments
include commitments to originate loans and unused lines of credit. Those instruments involve, to
varying degrees, elements of credit and interest rate risk in excess of the amount recognized in
the balance sheet. The Company·s maximum exposure to credit loss in the event of
nonperformance by the borrower is represented by the contractual amount and related accrued
interest receivable of those instruments. The Company minimizes this risk by evaluating each
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borrower·s creditworthiness on a case-by-case basis. Collateral held by the Company generally
consists of a first or second mortgage on the borrower·s property. The amount of collateral
obtained is based on an appraisal of the property.
Commitments to originate loans are legally binding agreements to lend to the Company·s
customers. Letters of credit are unconditional commitments issued by the Company to guarantee
the performance of the borrower to a third party.
The following table sets forth information regarding off-balance sheet financial
instruments as of December 31, 2012:
Fixed-Rate

Adjustable-Rate

Commitments to originate loans

$

13,829,536

$

800,000

Commitments for unused lines of credit

$

1,721,480

$

19,602,519

Commitments for undisbursed loans

$

4,057,682

$

6,361,339

Commitments for letters of credit

$

1,049,225

$

76,310

Interest rates on these fixed-rate loans ranged from 2.49% to 12.00%.
The current protracted economic decline continues to present financial institutions with
circumstances and challenges, which in some cases have resulted in large and unanticipated
declines in the fair values of investments and other assets, constraints on liquidity and capital
and significant credit quality problems, including severe volatility in the valuation of real estate
and other collateral supporting loans.
The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared using values
and information currently available to the Company.
Given the volatility of current economic conditions, the values of assets and liabilities
recorded in the consolidated financial statements could change rapidly, resulting in material
future adjustments in asset values, the allowance for loan losses and capital that could
QHJDWLYHO\ LPSDFW WKH %DQN·V DELOity to meet regulatory capital requirements and maintain
sufficient liquidity. )XUWKHUPRUH WKH %DQN·V UHJXODWRUV FRXOG UHTXLUH PDWHULDO DGMXVWPHQWV WR
asset values or the allowance for loan losses for regulatory capital purposes that could affect
WKH %DQN·V PHDVXUHPHQW RI UHJXODWRU\ FDSLWDO DQG FRPSOLDQFH ZLWK WKH FDSLWDO DGHTXDF\
guidelines under the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action.
At December 31, 2012, there was no known pending litigation or other claims that
management believes will be material to the Company·s financial position.
(16)

Disclosures about Fair Value of Assets

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. Fair value
measurements must maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of
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unobservable inputs. There is a hierarchy of three levels of inputs that may be used to measure
fair value:
Level 1

Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets

Level 2

Observable inputs other than Level 1 prices, such as quoted prices for
similar assets; quoted prices in active markets that are not active; or other
inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by observable market data
for substantially the full term of the assets

Level 3

Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity and that
are significant to the fair value of the assets

Recurring Measurements
The following tables present the fair value measurements of assets recognized in the
accompanying consolidated balance sheets measured at fair value on a recurring basis and the
level within the fair value hierarchy in which the fair value measurements fall at December 31,
2012 and September 30, 2011:
December 31, 2012
Fair Value Measurements Using
Quoted Prices in
Active Markets for
Identical Assets

Significant Other
Observable Inputs

Significant
Unobservable
Inputs

(Level 1)

(Level 2)

(Level 3)

Fair Value

Available for sale securities
State and municipal obligations
Mortgage-backed GSE residential
Equity securities

$
$
$

4,857,766
6,515,612
115,870

$
$
$

4,931,894
115,870

$
$
$

2,179,960
1,583,718
-

$
$
$

2,677,806
-

September 30, 2011
Fair Value Measurements Using
Quoted Prices in
Active Markets for
Identical Assets

Significant Other
Observable Inputs

Significant
Unobservable
Inputs

(Level 1)

(Level 2)

(Level 3)

Fair Value

Available for sale securities
State and municipal obligations
Mortgage-backed GSE residential
Equity securities

$
$
$

6,456,052
7,078,098
259,008

$
$
$

259,008

$
$
$

3,992,660
7,078,098
-

$
$
$

2,463,392
-

Following is a description of the valuation methodologies and inputs used for assets
measured at fair value on a recurring basis and recognized in the accompanying consolidated
balance sheets, as well as the general classification of such assets pursuant to the valuation
hierarchy. There have been no significant changes in the valuation techniques during the fifteen
months ended December 31, 2012. For assets classified within Level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy, the process used to develop the reported fair value is described below.
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Available-for-sale Securities
Where quoted market prices are available in an active market, securities are classified
within Level 1 of the valuation hierarchy. If quoted market prices are not available, then fair
values are estimated by using quoted prices of securities with similar characteristics or
independent asset pricing services and pricing models, the inputs of which are market-based or
independently sourced market parameters, including, but not limited to, yield curves, interest
rates, volatilities, prepayments, defaults, cumulative loss projections and cash flows. Such
securities are classified in Level 2 of the valuation hierarchy. In certain cases where Level 1 or
Level 2 inputs are not available, securities are classified within Level 3 of the hierarchy. See the
table below for inputs and valuation techniques used for Level 3 securities.
Level 3 Reconciliation
The following is a reconciliation of the beginning and ending balances of recurring fair
value measurements recognized in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets using
significant unobservable (Level 3) inputs:
State and political
subdivision
securities

Balance, October 1, 2010

$

Total realized and unrealized gains and losses
Included in other comprehensive income
Unrealized appreciation on
available-for-sale securities
Purchases
Principal collections

2,323,560

473,701
3,386
(337,255)

Balance, September 30, 2011

$

Total realized and unrealized gains and losses
Included in other comprehensive income
Unrealized appreciation on
available-for-sale securities
Principal collections
Transfers in and/or out of Level 3

2,463,392

(381,326)
(163,415)
759,155

Balance, December 31, 2012

$

2,677,806

Nonrecurring Measurements
The following tables present the fair value measurement of assets measured at fair
value on a nonrecurring basis and the level within the fair value hierarchy in which the fair value
measurements fall at December 31, 2012 and September 30, 2011:
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December 31, 2012
Fair Value Measurements Using
Quoted Prices in
Active Markets for
Identical Assets

Significant Other
Observable Inputs

Significant
Unobservable
Inputs

(Level 1)

(Level 2)

(Level 3)

Fair Value
Collateral dependent impaired,
non-covered loans
Foreclosed assets, non-covered

$
$

5,457,119
9,787,192

$
$

-

$
$

-

$
$

5,457,119
9,787,192

September 30, 2011
Fair Value Measurements Using
Quoted Prices in
Active Markets for
Identical Assets

Significant Other
Observable Inputs

Significant
Unobservable
Inputs

(Level 1)

(Level 2)

(Level 3)

Fair Value
Collateral dependent impaired,
non-covered loans
Foreclosed assets, non-covered

$
$

3,826,335
10,855,215

$
$

-

$
$

-

$
$

3,826,335
10,855,215

Following is a description of the valuation methodologies and inputs used for assets
measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis and recognized in the accompanying
consolidated balance sheets, as well as the general classification of such assets pursuant to the
valuation hierarchy.
Collateral-dependent Impaired Loans, Net of Allowance for Loan Losses
The estimated fair value of collateral-dependent impaired loans is based on the
appraised fair value of the collateral, less estimated cost to sell. Collateral-dependent impaired
loans are classified within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.
The Company considers the appraisal or evaluation as the starting point for determining
fair value and then considers other factors and events in the environment that may affect the fair
value. Appraisals of the collateral underlying collateral-dependent loans are obtained when the
loan is determined to be collateral-dependent and subsequently as deemed necessary by
management.
Appraisals are reviewed for accuracy and consistency by independent
personnel. Appraisers are selected from the list of approved appraisers maintained by
management. The appraised values are reduced by discounts to consider lack of marketability
and estimated cost to sell if repayment or satisfaction of the loan is dependent on the sale of the
collateral. These discounts and estimates are developed by management by comparison to
historical results.
Foreclosed Assets Held for Sale
Foreclosed assets held for sale are carried at the lower of fair value at acquisition date
or current estimated fair value, less estimated cost to sell when the real estate is acquired.
Estimated fair value is based on appraisals or evaluations. Foreclosed assets held for sale are
classified within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.
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Appraisals of foreclosed assets held for sale are obtained when real estate is acquired
and subsequently as deemed necessary by management. Appraisals are reviewed for
accuracy and consistency by independent personnel. Appraisers are selected from the list of
approved appraisers maintained by management.
Unobservable (Level 3) Inputs
The following table presents quantitative information about unobservable inputs used in
recurring and nonrecurring Level 3 fair value measurements.
Fair Value at
12/31/12

Valuation
Technique

Unobservable Inputs

Range (Weighted
Average)

State and municipal obligations

$

2,677,806

Discounted cash
flow

Unrated security
yield

1.85%-6.25%
(5.84%)

Collateral-dependent impaired loans

$

5,457,119

Market comparable
properties

Marketability
discount

0%-25% (7%)

Foreclosed assets held for sale, net

$

9,787,192

Market comparable
properties

Comparability
adjustments (%)

Not available
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Fair Value of Financial Instruments
The folORZLQJ WDEOH SUHVHQWV HVWLPDWHG IDLU YDOXHV RI WKH &RPSDQ\·V ILQDQFLDO
instruments at December 31, 2012 and September 30, 2011.
December 31, 2012

September 30, 2011

Carrying

Fair

Carrying

Fair

Amount

Value

Amount

Value

Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents

$

35,462,318

$

35,462,318

$

82,121,907

$

82,121,907

Interest-bearing deposits due from
depository institutions
Securities available for sale

$

992,000

$

992,000

$

992,000

$

992,000

$

4,973,636

$

4,973,636

$

6,715,060

$

6,715,060

$

6,515,612

$

6,515,612

$

7,078,098

$

7,078,098

Mortgage-backed securities
available for sale
Stock in FHLB

$

2,320,100

$

2,320,100

$

3,516,100

$

3,516,100

Loans receivable, net

$

309,074,981

$

312,810,119

$

302,862,286

$

306,112,000

Loans held for sale

$

1,613,587

$

1,613,587

$

2,793,780

$

2,793,780

Interest receivable

$

1,365,083

$

1,365,083

$

1,453,266

$

1,453,266

Deposits

$

302,670,586

$

299,016,034

$

325,568,913

$

322,756,956

Interest payable

$

72,447

$

72,447

$

151,902

$

151,902

Advances from FHLB

$

40,744,472

$

42,459,861

$

66,406,753

$

68,226,000

$

3,117,385

$

3,150,352

$

896,750

$

903,756

$

69,738

$

69,738

$

1,362,638

$

1,362,638

$

-

$

-

$

-

$

-

Securities sold under
agreements to repurchase
Advances from borrowers for
taxes and insurance
Unrecognized financial instruments
(net of contract amount)
Commitments to originate loans
Letters of credit

$

-

$

-

$

-

$

-

Lines of credit

$

-

$

-

$

-

$

-

The following methods were used to estimate the fair value of all other financial
instruments recognized in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets at amounts other
than fair value.
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Interest-bearing Time Deposits, Stock in FHLB and
Advances from Borrowers for Taxes and Insurance
The carrying amount approximates fair value.
Loans and Interest Receivable
The fair value of loans is estimated by discounting the future cash flows using the market
rates at which similar loans would be made to borrowers with similar credit ratings and for the
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same remaining maturities. Loans with similar characteristics were aggregated for purposes of
the calculations. The carrying amount of interest receivable approximates its fair value.
Loans Held for Sale
The carrying amount approximates fair value to the insignificant time between origination
and date of sale.
Deposits and Interest Payable
Deposits include demand deposits, savings accounts, NOW accounts and certain money
market deposits. The carrying amount approximates fair value. The fair value of fixed-maturity
time deposits is estimated using a discounted cash flow calculation that applies the rates
currently offered for deposits of similar remaining maturities. The carrying amount of interest
payable approximates its fair value.
Advances from FHLB and Securities Sold Under Agreements to Repurchase
Fair value is estimated by discounting the future cash flows using rates of similar
borrowings with similar maturities.
Commitments to Originate Loans, Standby Letters of Credit and Lines of Credit
The fair value of commitments to originate loans is estimated using the fees currently
charged to enter into similar agreements, taking into account the remaining terms of the
agreements and the present creditworthiness of the counterparties. For fixed-rate loan
commitments, fair value also considers the difference between current levels of interest rates
and the committed rates. The fair values of letters of credit and lines of credit are based on fees
currently charged for similar agreements or on the estimated cost to terminate or otherwise
settle the obligations with the counterparties at the reporting date. As a result of the short-term
nature of the outstanding commitments, the fair values of fees on such commitments are
FRQVLGHUHGLPPDWHULDOWRWKH&RPSDQ\·VILQDQFLDOFRQGLWLRQ
(17)

Subsequent Events

Subsequent events have been evaluated through the date of the Independent AXGLWRU·V
Report, which is the date the consolidated financial statements were available to be issued.
On April 1, 2013, the bank acquired 100% of the outstanding common stock of Patriots
Bank (“Patriots”). Patriots is a Fed nonmember bank located in Liberty, Missouri. As a result of
the acquisition, the Bank will have an opportunity to increase its deposit base and reduce
transaction costs. The Bank also expects to reduce costs through economies of scale.
In 2012, the Bank incurred $24,000 of third-party acquisition-related costs. The
expenses are included in noninterest expense in the &RPSDQ\·V consolidated statement of
earnings for the fifteen months ended December 31, 2012.
The goodwill of $23,240 arising from the acquisition consists largely of the synergies and
economies of scale expected from combining the operations of the Company and Patriots. All
of the goodwill was assigned to the banking segment of the business.
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The following table summarizes the consideration paid for Patriots and the amounts of
the assets acquired and liabilities assumed recognized at the acquisition date. The Company is
in the process of obtaining third-party valuations of certain intangible assets; thus, the allocation
of the purchase price is subject to refinement.
Estimated Fair Value of Consideration Transferred
Cash

$

3,192,000

$

29,336,000
43,801,000
1,854,000
2,941,000
195,000
97,000
1,187,760
79,411,760

Estimated amounts of identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed
Cash and cash equivalents
Loans
Premises equipment
Other Real Estate
Accrued Interest Receivable
Other Assets
Core deposit intangible, net
Assets to be acquired
Deposits
Other Liabilities
Liabilities to be assumed

79,184,000
251,000
79,435,000

Goodwill

$

23,240

The fair value of the loans acquired will be determined after the transaction is completed.
The gross amount due under the contracts is $45.8 million, of which all is expected to be
collectible.
The estimated fair value of the acquired identifiable intangible assets of $1.2 million is
provisional pending receipt of the final valuations for those assets.
Direct acquisition costs are estimated to be $300,000.
majority of this expenditure will be incurred in 2013.

F-48

The Bank expects that the

LIBERTY BANCORP, INC.
Board of Directors of Liberty Bancorp, Inc. and
BankLiberty
Daniel G. 2·'HOO
Chairman of the Board President,
2·'HOO Publishing, Inc.
Steven K. Havens
Director
President, Havens Construction Company, Inc.
Ralph W. Brant, Jr.
Director,
President, Brant·s Clothing
Robert T. Sevier
Director
Dr. Dennis Fisher
Director
Brent M. Giles
Director, President & Chief Executive Officer
Liberty Bancorp, Inc. & BankLiberty

Branch Offices
Corporate Office
16 W. Franklin
Liberty, MO 64068
(816) 781-4822
Platte City
1401 Branch
Platte City, MO 64079
(816) 792-6677
Plattsburg
1206 Clay
Plattsburg, MO 64477
(816) 792-6688
Shoal Creek
9200 N.E. Barry Road
Kansas City, MO 64157
(816) 407-9200
Independence
4315 South Noland Road
Independence, MO 64055
(816) 350-4477

Officers of Liberty Bancorp, Inc.
Brent M. Giles
President and Chief Executive Officer
Marc J. Weishaar
Treasurer, Senior Vice President and Chief Financial
Officer
Mark E. Hecker
Senior Vice President and Chief
Lending Officer
Cathy Trusler
Corporate Secretary
Martin J. Weishaar
Senior Vice President,
Chief Administrative Officer and General Counsel

Officers of BankLiberty
Brent M. Giles
President and
Chief Executive Officer
Marc J. Weishaar
Senior Vice President
and Chief Financial Officer
Mark E. Hecker
Senior Vice President and Chief
Lending Officer
Martin J. Weishaar
Senior Vice President, Chief Administrative Officer &
General Counsel
Kenneth M. Honeck
Senior Vice President, Chief Deposit Officer
Monica Bolin
Senior Vice President,
Credit Administration

Boardwalk
8740 N. Ambassador Drive
Kansas City, MO 64154
(816) 741-7979
Gladstone
6410 N. Prospect
Gladstone, MO 64119
(816) 452-7300
Parkville
6309 NW Highway 9
Parkville, MO 64152
(816) 587-7700
North Kansas City
1157 Burlington
North Kansas City, MO 64116
(816) 221-5577
Farley
91 Main
Farley, MO 64028
(816) 330-3322

Investor Information
LEGAL COUNSEL
Stinson Morrison Hecker LLP
1201 Walnut Street
Kansas City, MO 64106
STOCK TRANSFER AGENT AND REGISTRAR
Registrar and Transfer Company
10 Commerce Drive
Cranford, New Jersey 07016
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR
BKD, LLP
One Metropolitan Square
211 N. Broadway, Suite 600
St. Louis, Missouri 63102

LIBE
BERTY
RTY BA
BANC
NCORP
ORP, IINC
NC.
 7 &RANKLIN s ,IBERTY -/  

